          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 March 1, 2007

                            Start:  1:20 p.m.

         11                 Recess: 3:34 p.m.

         12                 City Hall

                            Council Chamber

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  B E F O R E:

         15

                         JOHN LIU

         16                                Chairperson,

         17

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Diana Reyna

         18                                 Joseph Addabbo

                                            Oliver Koppell

         19                                 Michael McMahon

                                            Daniel Garodnick

         20                                 Jessica Lappin

                                            Darlene Mealy

         21                                 Gale Brewer

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Iris Weinshall

          4  Commissioner

             New York City Department of Transportation

          5

             Rohit Aggarwala

          6  Director of Long-Term Planning and Sustainability

             Mayor's Office of Operations

          7

             Steve Weber

          8  Assistant Commissioner for Strategic Planning

             New York City Department of Transportation

          9

             Kathryn Wylde

         10  President and CEO

             Partnership for New York City

         11

             Bill Egan

         12  Executive Vice President

             Queens Chamber of Commerce

         13

             Gene Russianoff

         14  Senior Attorney

             NYPIRG Straphangers Campaign

         15

             Paul Steely White

         16  Executive Director

             Transportation Alternatives

         17

             Teresa Toro

         18  New York City Coordinator

             Tri-State Transportation Campaign

         19

             Ramon Cruz

         20  Policy Analyst

             Living Cities Program

         21  Environmental Defense

         22  George Haikalis

             President

         23  Institute for Rational Urban Mobility, Inc (IRUM)

         24  Lauren George

             Traffic Relief Program Manager

         25  Citizens Committee for New York City

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Glenn McAnanama

          4  President

             Upper Green Side

          5

             Bart Chezar

          6  Transportation Consultant

          7  Doreen Blair-Skipper

             Resident

          8  Borough of Queens

          9  Bruce Schaller

             Principal

         10  Schaller Consulting

         11  Mr. X

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Welcome to today's

          3  hearing of the City Council's Committee on

          4  Transportation.  My name is John Liu, I have the

          5  privilege of Chairing this Committee.  From the

          6  outset let me announce that our hearing on Proposed

          7  Intro 24A and Proposed Intro 58A has been deferred.

          8  I apologize if anybody had not been notified in

          9  advance.  Those were Bicycle Workplace Safety Bills.

         10  They will be coming out shortly in the next week or

         11  so.

         12                 Today's oversight hearing, how do we

         13  achieve PlaNYC 2030 sustainability goal to improve

         14  travel times by adding transit capacity for millions

         15  more residents, visitors and workers?

         16                 As we all know from traveling through

         17  the streets of NYC, this is one of the most

         18  congested places in the world with over 8 million

         19  people jammed into 321 square miles.  According to

         20  estimates, NYC's population will grow to over 9

         21  million people by 2030, all trying to travel around

         22  the City's 321 square miles and especially as the

         23  City's aging infrastructure continues to get older.

         24                 At the end of last year Mayor

         25  Bloomberg announced an initiative to address the
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          2  issue of transit capacity and other issues, creating

          3  an Office of Long- Term Planning and Sustainability

          4  to develop our long- term growth and development

          5  plan for the City that will include sustainability

          6  goals and practices.  As part of this initiative the

          7  Mayor also set up a Sustainability Advisory Board,

          8  Chaired by Deputy Mayor Dan Doctoroff and comprised

          9  of 16 representatives from environmental, labor,

         10  community and business groups, as well as our

         11  Speaker of the City Council, Christine Quinn and

         12  Environmental Protection Chairperson, Jim Gennaro.

         13  The Sustainability Advisory Board's mission is to

         14  identify the most important issues to address in the

         15  long- term growth and development plan.  We commend

         16  the Mayor for establishing this initiative and

         17  recognize the importance of long- term planning for

         18  our City.  For too long our City has been acting

         19  without a real long- term plan and has instead been

         20  reacting to aging infrastructure and other problems

         21  instead of having a plan on how to deal with these

         22  issues head on and proactively.  At the same time,

         23  we look to getting some concrete milestones that

         24  will be met before the close of 2009, so that there

         25  can be real meat attached to this sustainability
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          2  effort.

          3                 There is no question, congestion is

          4  strangling many parts of the City.  A recent study

          5  from a prominent business group concluded that the

          6  congestion is costing the City 37,000 to 52,000 jobs

          7  per year and over $13 billion of economic activity

          8  annually. Finding a solution that will improve

          9  travel times by increasing transit capacity is of

         10  utmost importance if New York City is to compete and

         11  remain a Center of International Commerce.

         12                 We are joined today so far by Members

         13  of the Committee, Council Member Michael McMahon

         14  from Staten Island, and Council Member Daniel

         15  Garodnick from Manhattan.  In addition, I would like

         16  to thank our Committee Staff for their great work in

         17  this, Ron Kim our Policy Analyst, Chima Obichere our

         18  Finance Analyst and Phil Hom our Legislative Legal

         19  Counsel.

         20                 With that, let me welcome the

         21  Officials from the Bloomberg Administration who are

         22  here to testify, Commissioner Weinshall it is always

         23  great to have you here --

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Pleasure to

         25  see you Mr. Chairman.

                                                            7

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- And it's great

          3  to see Rohit Aggarwala, the Mayor's Director of

          4  Long- Term Sustainability, well you can talk about

          5  your Title when you testify.  With that, let me --

          6  and Commissioner, you can introduce whoever you'd

          7  like on your terrific team at the Department of

          8  Transportation.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Well Rohit's

         10  going first, so I'll let him --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Oh, okay, well, by

         12  all means proceed then.

         13                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Thank you Chairman

         14  Liu, and good afternoon Members of the Committee on

         15  Transportation.  My name is Rohit T. Aggarwala and I

         16  am the Director of Long- Term Planning and

         17  Sustainability in the Mayor's Office of Operations.

         18  I want to thank you for the opportunity to testify

         19  today on the Mayor's 2030 goal of improving travel

         20  times across the City by increasing transit

         21  capacity.

         22                 As you know, the overall goals of the

         23  sustainability effort, PlaNYC, were developed

         24  through the work of the Sustainability Advisory

         25  Board.  I'm very happy that Speaker Quinn and
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          2  Councilman Gennaro are members of that Board.

          3  Through this process our strong hope is that we can

          4  be close partners with the City Council, which has

          5  already shown such great leadership on the issue of

          6  sustainability.

          7                 I'm pleased to be joined today by the

          8  Commissioner of Transportation, Iris Weinshall.

          9  With Iris's leadership and the strong commitment of

         10  her staff, especially the office led by the

         11  Assistant Commissioner for Strategic Planning, Steve

         12  Weber, who is here with us, DOT has been an integral

         13  part of the work on PlaNYC. I would also like to

         14  introduce Rachel Weinberger, who is our Senior

         15  Policy Advisor for Transportation, and Emily Yuhas

         16  (phonetic) and Mark Seman (phonetic) from her staff,

         17  who will be here to absorb the testimony and take

         18  that into our considerations.

         19                 I'll leave it to Iris to explain the

         20  challenges we face in meeting the transportation

         21  goals the Mayor outlined in his speech in December,

         22  and to explain some of the work that the City has

         23  already done towards those goals.  But I would like

         24  to offer some context for how the goals fit in to

         25  the overall sustainability effort, which as you know
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          2  integrates the three themes of planning for positive

          3  growth, investing responsibility to maintain and

          4  improve our infrastructure, and considering the

          5  environment in all of our decisions.

          6                 One of the key insights that led

          7  Mayor Bloomberg and Deputy Mayor Doctoroff to begin

          8  what started out as a strategic land use plan over a

          9  year ago was the fact that by the year 2000, New

         10  York had regained the population that we lost in the

         11  1970's and that even the attack on September 11th,

         12  did not reverse the City's growth.  As a result, our

         13  long- term projection will show the City growing

         14  from our current 8.2 million residents to over 9

         15  million by 2030.

         16                 This change requires us, all New

         17  Yorkers, to return to a way of thinking that our

         18  City has not really had for 50 years. In the 1960s

         19  and 70s, poor management decision were literally

         20  eating away at the City's infrastructure.  As a

         21  result, for the last 25 years transportation

         22  planning and funding in New York has focused on

         23  rebuilding, not expansion.  Even though we have not

         24  yet achieved a full state of good repair, our

         25  subways, roads, and bridges are now operating at
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          2  high levels of performance.

          3                 But now that we have rebuilt our

          4  transportation infrastructure, the demands we place

          5  on it have begun to outgrow its capacity.  We know

          6  that our roads, rails, and sidewalks are

          7  increasingly crowded and that's because we haven't

          8  been building for growth.  Today, our subway system

          9  carries as many passengers as it did in 1950 but the

         10  system is actually smaller than it was in that year.

         11    We are just now getting to major transportation

         12  projects that have been in planning for generations.

         13    The new Hudson River Tunnel, which was first

         14  planned in the late 80s, East Side Access, first

         15  planned in the 1950s, and of course the Second

         16  Avenue Subway, which was first planned in the 1920s.

         17    If we don't plan for growth by adding new

         18  capacity, we'll find our entire City constrained by

         19  congestion of all kinds.

         20                 Our second theme is that responsible

         21  investment is something that we must be willing to

         22  do.  New Yorkers often thank the previous

         23  generations who created a street grid for a million

         24  people at a time when New York only had a 100,000

         25  residents, who built a massive Central Park at a
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          2  time when few lived above 23rd

          3  Street, who built a water system with the capacity

          4  to last for centuries, and who built the subway

          5  system that we rely on today.

          6                 But we seldom think about the fact

          7  that those New Yorkers made the decision not only to

          8  do those things but to pay for them as well.  In the

          9  19th century, the street grid was in general, paid

         10  for by the same sort of tax increment financing that

         11  we've now used to fund the 7- Train extension.

         12  Central Park was paid for by a general tax because

         13  all New Yorkers were intended to use the park.  The

         14  early water system was funded through a series of

         15  user fees.  The subways were built through what was

         16  then a remarkably innovative public- private

         17  partnership but one that still included vast sums of

         18  public money.

         19                 In all of those cases New Yorker's

         20  argued over who should pay what, but ultimately

         21  settled on financing approaches that were based on

         22  the principle that those who benefited should

         23  contribute.  Those investments paid off by making

         24  New York the City it is today and few New Yorkers

         25  who lived at the time regretted those investments
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          2  after they were opened for use.

          3                 Today we face a similar challenge.

          4  The MTA faces a state of good repair deficit of

          5  roughly $15 billion and one that will still be $10

          6  billion after the current five- year capital plan is

          7  completed.  We face a backlog of road repair that we

          8  cannot cover in just one or two years of higher City

          9  appropriations.

         10                 The greatest challenge is the fact

         11  that the new infrastructure we need is not yet fully

         12  funded either.  East Side Access, the Second Avenue

         13  Subway, the new tunnel under the Hudson, these have

         14  some funding, in some cases enough to get started

         15  with construction, but the complete funds aren't met

         16  yet.  In fact, New York faces a total transportation

         17  investment need of between $35 and $50 billion over

         18  the next 25 years.

         19                 Our third theme in PlaNYC is the

         20  environment.  New Yorkers today understand that

         21  whether in terms of air quality, land use, or the

         22  overarching threat of climate change, we must take

         23  the environment into account when we make decisions,

         24  daily decisions made by all New Yorkers, as well as

         25  policy decisions made by leaders, advocates, and
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          2  voters.

          3                 And care for the environment leads us

          4  to the inescapable conclusion that informs our goal

          5  that the only way out of our congestion problem

          6  today is the creation of transit capacity.  The

          7  automobile and the truck are integral parts of our

          8  transportation system.  We cannot and should not

          9  ignore them.  We must make traffic flow better, we

         10  must do an ever- better job of facilitating the

         11  deliveries that keep New Yorkers supplied with food,

         12  clothing, and other goods.  By any measure, land

         13  use, air pollution, carbon emissions, transit,

         14  however, is far more efficient than the automobile.

         15  In a crowded City it's also often the most

         16  convenient mode of travel, which is why 64 percent

         17  of New Yorkers commute to work without using a car.

         18                 But achieving a further shift will

         19  not be easy. According to NYMTC, in 1981, when

         20  subway service was probably at its worst ever, 31.1

         21  percent of all people traveling to the central

         22  business district arrived by auto.  In 2003, with

         23  subway service at record levels, that figure was

         24  32.5 percent.  Although transit use has risen, auto

         25  use has risen alongside.
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          2                 Achieving the Mayor's transport

          3  goals, therefore, will not be easy.  We will need as

          4  a City to undertake these three efforts:  To return

          5  to a mindset of planning for growth, to develop a

          6  willingness to make long- term transportation

          7  investments, and to promote more of a shift away

          8  from thy auto and towards transit. Whether we can

          9  summon the collective will to achieve these goals in

         10  an equitable and logical way may well determine

         11  whether the New York of 2030 is a sustainable City

         12  or not.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Rohit.

         15  Rohit, do you have a copy of your statement.

         16                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Oh, I'm sorry.  I

         17  thought it was being delivered to you.  I'm happy to

         18  share the one I've got.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes, I don't think

         20  any of us received a copy of it.

         21                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Okay, my apologies

         22  for that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, thank

         24  you Katie. Commissioner.  I'm sorry, let me note

         25  that we have been joined by Council Member Gale
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          2  Brewer of Manhattan, and Council Member Joe Addabbo

          3  of Queens.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Good

          5  afternoon, I'm Iris Weinshall, Commissioner of the

          6  New York City Department of Transportation, and with

          7  me here today is Steve Weber, DOT's Assistant

          8  Commissioner for Strategic Planning.  Thank you for

          9  providing us with this opportunity to testify before

         10  you today, and thank you Rohit for providing an

         11  introduction to this topic.  My testimony will focus

         12  on the fundamental mobility challenges that lie

         13  before us, and then I will talk about our efforts to

         14  date and conclude by commenting on the hard choices

         15  we are faced with as we strive towards a sustainable

         16  City.

         17                 As our City grows to a population of

         18  nine million and our transportation that for the

         19  most part was put in place decades ago, and even

         20  centuries ago, is at capacity.  We're faced with the

         21  fundamental challenge of developing strategies to

         22  shift travel away from the automobile and into

         23  alternative more efficient modes of transportation.

         24  While the Mayor's Long- Term Planning and

         25  Sustainability Initiative is focused on this hurdle,
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          2  it's very clear that steps must be taken now to

          3  encourage a shift away from the personal automobile

          4  to other modes.  These steps include creating safer

          5  space for pedestrians and bicyclists, investing in

          6  significant improvements to our subway system, and

          7  enhancing other mass transit options, such as buses

          8  and ferries.

          9                 I would like to talk to you about

         10  what we've already accomplished on these fronts and

         11  the direction we're headed. First, we're working

         12  diligently on implementing pedestrian safety

         13  initiatives.  Efforts to better protect pedestrians

         14  are, in my mind, DOT's most critical mission.

         15  Though our road space is shared by many users, New

         16  York is above all a walking City.  We have pursued

         17  many initiatives to better provide space for and

         18  protect pedestrians, from the Time Square Shuffle

         19  that will allow us to increase pedestrian space by

         20  50 percent, to safety improvements on pedestrian

         21  bridges throughout the City, to the incorporation of

         22  leading pedestrian intervals at many signalized

         23  intersections to provide more conflict- free

         24  crossing time.  And the numbers speak for

         25  themselves.  In 2004 and 2005 pedestrian fatalities
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          2  hit an all time low since 1910.

          3                 Critical to our efforts to improve

          4  safety, we're moving forward on unprecedented

          5  traffic calming as part of the Safe Routes to

          6  Schools Program.  As many of you may recall, in

          7  2004, we announced our Safe Routes to School

          8  initiative, a program to focus on safety

          9  improvements for those who are most vulnerable, our

         10  children.  After studying the areas and accident

         11  histories around the city's 1,400 public, private

         12  and parochial elementary and middle schools, we

         13  selected 135 priority locations.  Each priority

         14  location underwent thorough study and in November of

         15  2006, our consultants issued the last of the 135

         16  Safe Routes Reports.  Each report contains specific

         17  safety recommendations and we've already made over

         18  80 percent of the short- term improvements at these

         19  locations.  This includes the installation of 24

         20  traffic signal improvements, 56 speed reducers, 200

         21  school crosswalks, and almost 2,000 new school

         22  warning signs.

         23                 Plans are also underway for a

         24  substantial amount of capital work on the streets

         25  and sidewalks around these schools.  In total, the
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          2  reports recommended over 775 new neck downs and 80

          3  new pedestrian medians and refuge islands.  In the

          4  years ahead, we will also perform similar work for a

          5  second round of 135 elementary and middle schools

          6  and also 40 of the City's 400 high schools.  I

          7  should note, however, that we have not neglected

          8  work around other school locations.  We have, for

          9  instance, installed 20 speed reducers around the

         10  other schools since June of 2006.

         11                 Similarly, In Downtown Brooklyn, DOT

         12  has acted on many of the recommendations of the

         13  Downtown Brooklyn Traffic Calming Report.  These

         14  measures include reducing the number of the travel

         15  lanes, adding medians and left turn bays, adjusting

         16  signal timings, converting one- ways to two- ways,

         17  adding bicycle lanes and adding parking, all to slow

         18  vehicles down and discourage through traffic.  We

         19  have also planned for significant capital work

         20  recommended by the study, including 250 neck downs.

         21  Construction has also been divided into two phases,

         22  with the first phase in our Capital Plan for Fiscal

         23  Year 2008, and fully funded at five million dollars.

         24    It includes the construction of neck downs at 101

         25  of the locations at 43 intersections.

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 We are also looking to reimagine the

          3  pedestrian experience in the City.  Last year in

          4  Brooklyn, we created the Willoughby Street

          5  Pedestrian Plaza.  In an era with low vehicle

          6  volumes and rampant illegal parking, we closed off

          7  streets and added tables, chairs and planters.  We

          8  took away from roadway space, but in doing so we

          9  created a street that now caters to the high

         10  pedestrian volumes and large lunch crowds, providing

         11  additional safe and pleasant space to walk around or

         12  enjoy a meal. We've also created a similar space in

         13  front of Peter Cooper Village on 1st Avenue, and

         14  we've developed plaza plans for Astor Place and

         15  Louise Nevelson Plaza in Manhattan.

         16                 We have also made significant strides

         17  in promoting bicycle and bicycling safety.  Last

         18  September we announced a commitment to build 200

         19  miles of new on- street bicycle facilities over the

         20  next three years.  These facilities, which will

         21  include vehicle- free bike paths, on- street striped

         22  lanes and signed routes, will compose the backbone

         23  of the City's planned bicycle network. DOT will

         24  install 40 miles in Fiscal Year 2007, 70 miles in

         25  Fiscal Year 2008, and a record 90 miles in Fiscal
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          2  Year 2009.  To accomplish this, DOT has been hiring

          3  additional staff and committing more funding for its

          4  Bicycle and Highway Design division.  We have

          5  already completed 28 miles of the new bike lanes and

          6  routes this Fiscal Year, introduced new shared lane

          7  signs and marking and installed more than 250 new

          8  bicycle racks.  In addition, we will begin a pilot

          9  program for green- colored lanes later this Spring.

         10                 All these steps have made walking and

         11  cycling safer but encouraging the use and expansion

         12  of our mass transit system is the most important

         13  step in getting people out of their cars, onto

         14  subways, ferries and buses.  If we want to see a

         15  meaningful reduction in automobile use, there must

         16  be viable and reliable alternatives.  The region's

         17  subways, buses and commuter rails move 8.4 million

         18  people each day.  The MTA's New Start projects,

         19  including Second Avenue Subway, East Side Access and

         20  the 7- Train extension are obviously critical

         21  projects, as our subway system has not had a major

         22  expansion in more than 50 years.  These proposed new

         23  lines will be critical to parts of the City

         24  currently underserved by mass transportation.  I

         25  would also like to point out that the city is doing
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          2  its part by investing $2 billion to fund the #7

          3  extension.

          4                 Beyond the subway system, there are

          5  other parts of the City's transit network that must

          6  be bolstered, ferries and buses are two modes that

          7  the City can directly impact.  Ferry operator have

          8  proven that their services are vital mode of

          9  transportation in the City.  They played a vital

         10  role after 9/11 in helping to keep the City moving

         11  and assisting commuters getting to and from work

         12  more easily.  This Administration is committed to

         13  continuing to improve and maintain our pier

         14  infrastructure.  By doing this we will encourage

         15  private operators to enter the market and offer

         16  ferry service.  While our build it and they will

         17  come philosophy has served us well for nearly two

         18  decades, we believe we will need to do more to

         19  encourage private operators to enter the market and

         20  provide service.

         21                 This continued demand for ferry

         22  service around the City, most notably on the East

         23  River between Queens and Brooklyn to Manhattan, and

         24  other locations such as Staten Island's South Shore

         25  and the Rockaway's.  This end, we're working
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          2  collaboratively with the New York City Department of

          3  Economic Development to develop a program and as a

          4  first step, EDC recently issued a solicitation for

          5  East River Ferry Service.  But most importantly, we

          6  believe that ferry private services must be better

          7  integrated into the MTA transit network.  In part,

          8  we must work with the MTA to install MetroCard fare

          9  boxes on these ferries.

         10                 Improving and transforming bus

         11  service is also critical to our transit

         12  infrastructure.  While the MTA provides the service,

         13  the ability of buses to service New Yorkers is

         14  dependent on their availability to move through our

         15  crowded streets.  As part of our Bus Rapid Transit

         16  initiative, we're working more cohesively with the

         17  MTA then ever before.

         18                 As part of this project we will

         19  introduce a package of measures to allow buses to

         20  move more quickly and reliably, including bus lanes

         21  with colored pavement, improved bus lane

         22  enforcement, signal prioritization, wider bus stop

         23  spacing, next bus information and quicker fare

         24  collection.  Over the past year we have moved from

         25  the study phase into design and implementation.

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Following public review and our technical analysis,

          3  we selected five corridors where we will implement

          4  BRT, Fordham Road- Pelham Parkway in the Bronx,

          5  Nostrand Avenue in Brooklyn, First and Second

          6  Avenues in Manhattan, Merrick Boulevard in Queens,

          7  and Hylan Boulevard in Staten Island.

          8                 When these corridors initially roll

          9  out, customers will see improvements such as new and

         10  better marked and enforced bus lanes, additional bus

         11  service on each route, signal timing improvements

         12  and improved stations that are more widely spaced

         13  for faster travel all wrapped together in a brand

         14  new identity designed to get people excited about

         15  riding the bus.  As we continue implementation, we

         16  expect to see additional improvements like real time

         17  information at bus stops, transit signal priority,

         18  and improvements in fare collection.  We expect to

         19  be able to initiate BRT service on two of the

         20  corridors by the end of this year with the other

         21  three in place by the end of 2008.

         22                 While we believe that BRT will have a

         23  significant impact on mobility and access for many

         24  New Yorkers and in the long term we need to and

         25  intend to move forward beyond these five corridors
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          2  to other routes and also hot spots along many

          3  corridors. In addition, it is important to note that

          4  many of the discrete BRT elements, such as signal

          5  prioritization, improved bus lanes and off board

          6  fare collection have potential system wide benefits,

          7  not just on chosen BRT routes.

          8                 As we move forward on all of these

          9  initiatives from our pedestrian and bicycling

         10  projects to our transit initiatives, in may cases we

         11  will have to make some very hard choices.  In a City

         12  as dense and heavily populated as ours, there are

         13  going to have to be some trade- offs and I need to

         14  say this now, not everyone is going to be happy.

         15                 Moving ahead on BRT is not going to

         16  be easy as we take away parking spaces, spaces for

         17  trucks to load and unload and actual moving lanes as

         18  we make room for the BRT lanes.  The same holds true

         19  for bicycle lanes as we take away parking and moving

         20  lanes to make room for them.  In fact, there are

         21  some communities in the City who have not welcomed

         22  our recently installed bike lanes.  Even when we

         23  implement pedestrian improvements, for instance,

         24  creating neck downs or daylighting corners, we often

         25  hear complaints over the loss of parking spaces as a
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          2  result.  As the expression goes, there is no free

          3  lunch, and as we accelerate our efforts to shift

          4  people away from other modes we will not be able to

          5  make everyone happy.

          6                 And so, having said this, I am also

          7  here today to ask for help.  As we move forward on

          8  sustainability fronts we need your support.  For

          9  every constituent complaint you receive, from

         10  complaints about taking away someone's parking

         11  space, to complaints about taking away vehicle

         12  travel lanes, we need you to support our efforts,

         13  realizing that they are for the good of the City as

         14  a whole.  Without your support, achieving a mobile,

         15  livable and sustainable City will be impossible to

         16  accomplish.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you

         19  Commission Weinshall. We have also been joined by

         20  Council Member Darlene Mealy of Brooklyn.

         21                 Mr. Weber, you're there for your

         22  technical expertise?

         23                 MR. WEBER:  That's correct.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Rather

         25  extensive Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good, perhaps we'll

          3  have a chance to test that.

          4                 I think obviously all New Yorkers are

          5  on- board, long- term planning and making our City

          6  sustainable for the indefinite future.  What exactly

          7  is happening, frame our discussion, just take a

          8  little bit of time to frame our discussion here.

          9  Everything that has been said sounds awesome but as

         10  good as it sounds, what are we really trying to get

         11  at here.  I mean 2030 is a long way off, and all of

         12  us are going to be here for a more finite number of

         13  years.  So what is the time frame, because I know

         14  that the Mayor announced it, but he said from the

         15  outset the sustainability effort, he is simply

         16  announcing it and beginning the discussion at the

         17  time that he announced it, not that he was going to

         18  lay out any initiatives.  So what's the time frame

         19  for putting some meat to the skeletons here, or

         20  actually even having some sort of skeleton?

         21                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Sir, what the Mayor

         22  announced in December, actually perhaps as you

         23  suggest, let me step back and explain our overall

         24  process.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  As briefly as you
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          2  can.

          3                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Okay.  The Mayor

          4  asked Deputy Mayor Doctoroff to begin what was then

          5  called the Strategic Land Use plan a little more

          6  than a year ago.  He announced that in the last

          7  State of the City.  As that proceeded and the Mayor

          8  and Dan realized that traditional land use questions

          9  were insufficient to think really about the City's

         10  long- term future and that what we needed was a more

         11  holistic sustainability approach.  The Mayor created

         12  my office in June, we appointed a Sustainability

         13  Advisory Board, as you mentioned, in September, and

         14  then the Mayor put forth these goals that the

         15  Advisory Board had helped us crystalize in December.

         16    In his speech, in Queens on December 12th, he

         17  promised that we would undertake roughly a three

         18  month effort to listen to the ideas of New Yorkers

         19  and I think we've done a lot of work towards that

         20  front.  We are still in that process right at the

         21  moment.  We distributed over a million copies of the

         22  brochure that I know you've seen in six of the

         23  City's daily newspapers in later December.  We

         24  launched a website that received over 15,000 unique

         25  visits and 2,500 e- mails which are now synthesized
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          2  and summarized on our website, it's there to be

          3  reviewed.  We have had meetings in every borough

          4  with roughly 300 or 400 community leaders, Community

          5  Board Chairs and District Managers, local civic

          6  groups, et cetera, and the feedback we received at

          7  those meetings are also now synthesized and

          8  available on our website.  And just last night, in

          9  Staten Island we began a series of public problem

         10  solving sessions where we invited the public to

         11  gather, issue them the ten challenges, and invite

         12  them to give us ideas on how to meet those. That

         13  process will be complete a week from Monday when we

         14  wrap up that effort at an event at our Manhattan

         15  meeting, which will take place at the NYU Kimball

         16  Center one week from Monday night.

         17                 At that point, and throughout this

         18  process, we have also been doing research, because

         19  as you might imagine the Sustainability Advisory

         20  Board has given us input, we took early input from

         21  the website and we've been analyzing what our

         22  options are.  We are not making any decisions until

         23  we finish our outreach effort and we have time

         24  internally to understand what New Yorkers think,

         25  what the facts tell us and how that all works
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          2  together.  The Mayor did say that roughly three to

          3  four months after his speech in December we would be

          4  issuing a plan.  So that should be coming up in

          5  roughly a month or a little bit more than that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Actually 11 days

          7  from now because he said three months.

          8                 MR. AGGARWALA:  That's true.

          9  Strictly speaking, three months to the date would be

         10  11 days. --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So presumable at

         12  the meeting on the Monday after this coming Monday,

         13  a plan will be issued because that's March 12th.

         14                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Fair enough.  I don't

         15  think we're going to have a plan on March 12th.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, take another

         17  month, April 12th --

         18                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Something like that,

         19  yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  -- Is the time when

         21  the Mayor is going to announce some kind of a

         22  preliminary plan on this sustainability, and is that

         23  plan going to include some specific proposals that

         24  are going to be met within the next two and one half

         25  years?
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          2                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Well it is a 2030

          3  plan, and one of the things that we believe is that

          4  we can't just do all of our thinking in the guides

          5  of the term limits that we face because that would

          6  not leave a sustainable legacy to the people --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well that's true

          8  but to have a little bit of credibility in this 23

          9  year long plan, you'd assume that there would be

         10  some measure of progress even within the next two

         11  years.  I think we're going to hear from some very

         12  staunch advocates for change in this City that there

         13  are specific measures that have already been

         14  proposed.

         15                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Our intention is to

         16  develop a plan that has very specific

         17  recommendations, some of which may wind up not

         18  having their impact until after we leave but many of

         19  which we can begin either, if it requires a

         20  legislative change, we're going to start trying to

         21  make those legislative changes, if it requires

         22  budgetary action, we're going to tell you how we

         23  think those budgetary decisions ought to be made.

         24  We are not just going to paint a picture for 2030

         25  and leave the implementation details to whoever
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          2  follows us.  That is not our intention at all.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Of course.  The

          4  point is, and Rohit I know you understand this also,

          5  but it has to be said over and over again that a 23

          6  year old plan has to have an outline for success

          7  almost year by year.  So this has nothing to do with

          8  term limits.  It has to do with, a year after an

          9  initiative is announced, there should be some kind

         10  of measurement of progress. Two years from then,

         11  there should be some measurement of progress. Either

         12  things are moving along, or things have to be

         13  modified somewhat, or in the absence of either of

         14  those, people will determine that it was just fluff

         15  to begin with and we don't want that to happen.

         16                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Well Chairman, I

         17  think if I may just to elaborate on that point, the

         18  Mayor made the decision when he created my office to

         19  place it as a part of the Office of Operations, and

         20  as you know, the Office of Operations traditionally

         21  as its main function has been the creation of the

         22  MMR.  He made that decision explicitly because

         23  precisely the kind of progress monitoring that

         24  you're talking about, we completely recognize as

         25  being crucial to this project having any legs at
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          2  all.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That's fine.  I'll

          4  just make it very clear, the progress monitoring is

          5  important but I would expect that by three to four

          6  months after the announcement, April 12th, that

          7  there would be some outline by which the public

          8  could monitor the progress.  Because if you don't

          9  have an outline, then there is no way to monitor any

         10  progress because it's just all some vague pie in the

         11  sky ideals.  So hopefully by then we'll have some

         12  things.

         13                 I think the Administration has been

         14  very -- I certainly commend the Administration for

         15  being proactive and requesting the types of hearings

         16  that we are having, such as the one today.  I know

         17  that there are hearings that other committees that

         18  have something to do with sustainability will also

         19  have.  A number of us will have to go to the other

         20  hearing with the Parks Department, also on

         21  sustainability.  I know you have to head over there

         22  to testify as well.  Since you're here at the

         23  Transportation Committee, I just wanted to point out

         24  to you, and maybe we're not getting the full story

         25  from the other side, but we asked the MTA to come to
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          2  this meeting and their response to us was that they

          3  couldn't really come and offer input because they

          4  have not had discussions with the Bloomberg

          5  Administration on this whole sustainability

          6  initiative.  So, has the Administration had, you

          7  know two and a half months after the announcement of

          8  this initiative, what kinds of discussions have

          9  taken place with the Metropolitan Transportation

         10  Authority?

         11                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Well we have had

         12  several staff level working conversations to share

         13  information and to share ideas.  I think it is

         14  certainly the MTA's role and their need to take

         15  their own time to figure out their ideas for how one

         16  might achieve these goals, and of course, they do

         17  not report to the Mayor.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, so you're

         19  saying there have been substantial or substantive

         20  discussions with the MTA?  They're saying that we

         21  haven't had a chance to discuss anything with the

         22  Administration, and so therefore, it is premature

         23  for us to provide input into this kind of a public

         24  hearing.

         25                 MR. AGGARWALA:  All right, well, Mr.

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  Chairman let me point out -- first of all these have

          3  been staff level contacts and it is a new

          4  Administration over there and I think we do, in

          5  fairness, they've got a lot on their plate to deal

          6  with so it's not clear to me that it would be a

          7  reasonable request of ours that they drop everything

          8  and focus on our plan.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I'm not suggesting

         10  that they would -- the MTA after all is a behemoth

         11  authority.  It's got lots of resources.  I think

         12  they can spare a team of people to deal with

         13  something so important as improving mass transit

         14  capacity.  So all I'm saying is that again, it goes

         15  back to whether this initiative is the real deal.  I

         16  really hope it is the real deal because we have to

         17  work at expanding mass transit capacity.  Now on the

         18  transportation front, and I know Rohit that you have

         19  to deal with sustainability from a very holistic

         20  point of view but transportation is obviously one of

         21  those key factors and as the congestion in this City

         22  keeps getting worse, everyone keeps talking raise

         23  increasing mass transit capacity, yet I do have to

         24  say I'm a little disappointed that the MTA has not

         25  really -- well they say they haven't had a chance to
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          2  really discuss things with the Administration, you

          3  say you're giving them some time to catch up with

          4  the new Administration and things like that, so

          5  let's get to it.  We have to get those discussions

          6  and I expect that within the next couple of months

          7  we'll get more detail.  I would like to see what

          8  exactly we're going to do to expand transit capacity

          9  beyond what's already been announced.  If the 7-

         10  train extension and the Second Avenue Line and East

         11  Side Access is all that we're going to see from this

         12  sustainability effort, then that's something that

         13  we'll live with but at least come out and say that.

         14  That is what we're focused on achieving.  If there

         15  is anything beyond that, people would like to know

         16  what's beyond that.  I've thrown out the suggestion

         17  of increasing express buses.  I think the Bus Rapid

         18  Transit thing is great and I think it's going to be

         19  very successful.  I hope it's going to be success, I

         20  think it's going to be successful.  Express buses

         21  are totally different from Bus Rapid Transit.  Bus

         22  Rapid Transit helps you move through a congested

         23  area.  Express buses bring people from outside, from

         24  the outer stretches of the City to Manhattan.  And a

         25  couple of months ago there was a study done that
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          2  said that most of the people who are driving to

          3  Manhattan, the Manhattan Central Business District,

          4  live within the five boroughs.  Some have used that

          5  as a reason that we have to start charging people

          6  for driving to Manhattan.  I see something far more

          7  wrong in that reality.  It suggests to me that

          8  people from outside New York City, people from Long

          9  Island, from West Chester, from New Jersey they have

         10  an easier time taking mass transit into Manhattan

         11  than people who live in Northeast Queens, or

         12  Southeast Queens, or Southern Brooklyn, or Staten

         13  Island, or the Northern parts of the Bronx and

         14  that's wrong.  So I hope that the sustainability

         15  initiative will consider how to get more New Yorkers

         16  to get out of their cars and into mass transit in a

         17  real substantial way, something that has meat and a

         18  commitment to expand express bus service both in

         19  frequency of service as well as in the network of

         20  routes will be a very tangible sign that the

         21  Administration is serious about combatting the

         22  traffic congestion.

         23                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Mr. Chairman

         24  we would agree with you, and I hope you'll refer

         25  back to my testimony where we talk about not just
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          2  subways and buses but using other modes of

          3  transportation as well, ferry comes to mind right

          4  away.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And to the extent

          6  that we could get the ferry service up and running,

          7  that would be great.  I think Council Member Addabbo

          8  has probably departed to the other hearing but

          9  that's great.  Express bus service is really low-

         10  hanging fruit that we could do very quickly with

         11  very little capital outlay up front.  It will cost

         12  money, no question about that.  But it costs us

         13  money if we don't reduce the congestion as we'll

         14  hear from the Partnership for New York City soon.

         15  So let's be serious about investing the money.  The

         16  sustainability effort is not going to come cheaply.

         17                 Rohit you referred to Hudson River

         18  Tunnel.  The Commissioner did not refer to anything

         19  like that in her testimony.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Well we

         21  didn't want to be redundant.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         23                 MR. AGGARWALA:  But we like talking

         24  about the 7 train?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  And the
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          2  Second Avenue Subway.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I don't want to say

          4  redundant, because you don't want to be redundant

          5  but you reinforced the need for the East Side Access

          6  for the Second Avenue Subway and the 7 train

          7  extension.  But Rohit, only you talked about the

          8  Hudson River Tunnel, so what is that?

          9                 MR. AGGARWALA:  What is the tunnel?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

         11                 MR. AGGARWALA:  The tunnel I'm

         12  referring to is, well it's been going through a

         13  couple changes of names, originally called Access to

         14  the Regions Core, now called the Trans- Hudson

         15  Express by New Jersey Transit.  Their proposal is to

         16  add an addition two subway tubes under the Hudson

         17  River between New Jersey and Penn Station.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right.  That's

         19  great.  What about something that the

         20  Administration, the Bloomberg Administration had

         21  fully supported at least for the first two years of

         22  the Administration, and that is something by the

         23  account of all the transportation experts that are

         24  alive today would reduce truck traffic into and out

         25  of New York City by a huge amount.  I'm talking
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          2  about a Cross Harbor Freight Tunnel, I'm sure you

          3  know about that.  What's happening about that?  Is

          4  that totally discarded, or is that going to be part

          5  of the sustainability effort?

          6                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Chairman, as you know

          7  we are in a planning process right now so to say

          8  whether it would or would not be part of the

          9  sustainability effort would certainly be premature.

         10  What we have said all along is that first of all we

         11  recognize that freight is a significant issue facing

         12  the City, and we need to think about that as well as

         13  passenger transportation.  And we said we are

         14  looking at as many different options as possible.  I

         15  don't think it would be appropriate for me to try to

         16  answer because that would be to suggest that our

         17  process was over.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, terrific.

         19  Well terrific for now.  Really we're going to be

         20  looking for ways in which to measure the success or

         21  failure of the sustainability effort.  And Rohit

         22  since your a former McKinzie guy, you're one heck of

         23  a smart fellow, so there is no question on our part

         24  that you know what you're doing, but this is not all

         25  about theory, there has to be a huge amount of

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  political will, especially if there are dollars

          3  involved.  I sincerely hope that the Administration

          4  is committed to this in terms of investing the real

          5  dollars and bringing some equity, in my opinion

          6  equity to commuters all throughout New York City,

          7  even those who find no choice except to drive their

          8  cars into Manhattan.

          9                 Let me recognize that Council Member

         10  Jessica Lappin from Manhattan is here.  Thank you

         11  Council Member Lappin.

         12                 We have questions from Council Member

         13  Michael McMahon.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Thank you

         15  Mr. Chairman and thank you for a very relevant and

         16  important hearing today and graveling with this

         17  issue, and good afternoon to all of you.

         18                 Mr. Aggarwala, I just want to point

         19  out I know that the hearing was held on Staten

         20  Island last night, but I just like to ask you about

         21  the outreach that you did for the hearing. Because

         22  of a conflict I couldn't attend but I only knew

         23  about it because I read about it in the local

         24  newspaper, so if you could real quick, I don't want

         25  to belabor, but maybe tell us the outreach you've
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          2  done to notify people about the hearings, and then I

          3  would suggest -- well go ahead.

          4                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Well we did a couple

          5  of things.  We did not do commercial advertising but

          6  we tried to get the word out through all the

          7  advocacy groups that we had met with, the community

          8  boards and the other people who had participated in

          9  the original meeting that we had in Staten Island,

         10  roughly I think five or six weeks ago at this point.

         11    We also had publicized the event on our website

         12  and tried to reach out to as many people from Staten

         13  Island who had expressed interest in the plan

         14  already.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  If you

         16  didn't do letters, did you do e- mails, and if so

         17  could I suggest in the future maybe e- mailing

         18  Council Members as well.

         19                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Okay, I was under the

         20  impression that Member Services had all the

         21  information, so I'm sorry if that didn't reach you.

         22  We'll make a point to --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Member

         24  Services of the Council?  Can I --

         25                 MR. AGGARWALA:  We'll make a point to
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          2  reach you directly --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  If you

          4  would, I think it would be better to reach us

          5  directly.

          6                 MR. AGGARWALA:  I would be more than

          7  happy to.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay, enough

          9  with that.

         10                 Commissioner let me just publicly

         11  congratulate you and say that we're going to miss

         12  you here, but on a personal note publicly

         13  congratulate you on your path to another career and

         14  I know that the CUNY system needs a lot of

         15  construction work and I know that the College of

         16  Staten Island will probably have their dormitories

         17  built by the end of this year, so, --

         18                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  In record

         19  time, Councilman, record time.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- And on a

         21  serious note to commend you from half of the people

         22  I represent but also on New Yorkers for a job well

         23  done.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Okay, now
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          2  but having said that, --

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Yes, now

          4  that we've dispensed of the niceties --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  No, that's

          6  the primary thing and I really mean that but in your

          7  testimony, as you know in our belief that crown

          8  jewel of the City Operated Transportation modes and

          9  mass transportation methodologies is the Staten

         10  Island Ferry and in your testimony I didn't really

         11  hear much about sort of the 2030 plan for the Staten

         12  Island Ferry and how we can even use this asset and

         13  this jewel to even move more people on a daily

         14  basis.  I know that there is a plan for, and you've

         15  moved up the construction of the ramp structures on

         16  the Staten Island side, if you could tell us about

         17  that a little bit.  What we're doing about

         18  attracting the vendors so that people can use it

         19  more as a transportation hub, rather than just a

         20  painful pass through in their daily commutes and in

         21  their visits from the tourists, and then maybe what

         22  thoughts are maybe about expanding service, like on

         23  the weekends if that's -- budgets an issue, but are

         24  these things that we're looking at, weekend,

         25  evenings, things like that?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Well as for

          3  the bus ramps, as you know, when we rebuilt the

          4  Staten Island Ferry both in St. George and

          5  Whitehall, the bus ramps, and I was not a DOT at the

          6  time, for whatever reason they were excluded from

          7  the plan and both the Bloomberg Administration and

          8  the Borough President have in subsequent years been

          9  very generous to contribute money to the capital

         10  budget to rebuild those bus ramps.  We have

         11  committed to pushing that project up, I believe it

         12  was going to be in 2011 and I believe now we have

         13  pushed up a couple of years.  The initial cost will

         14  be something about $180 million, but until we get

         15  those bids in we really won't know.  As you know

         16  Councilman, the numbers overall in the capital

         17  budget have gone up dramatically.  So it's our goal

         18  to move as quickly as we can on the bus ramps.

         19                 As for the terminals themselves and

         20  the services that we're able to provide, we had

         21  contracted with a company that was going to provide

         22  the stores and the amenities that we felt people

         23  would need in a major mass transit hub.  That

         24  arrangement did not work out and the City just

         25  signed an agreement and -- we're not doing business
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          2  with them anymore.  They have only provided minimal

          3  services in both terminals.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And when was

          5  the firing of that company official?

          6                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Yes, it was

          7  official I guess a couple of weeks ago.

          8                 We are working with EDC right now who

          9  has hired a retail consultant because as you know,

         10  DOT is not in the retail business, this not our

         11  expertise and we have to recognize that. And so we

         12  are in the process of bringing on board a retail

         13  consultant because it befuddles me that we have two

         14  state of the art gorgeous terminals that see 65,000

         15  people a day pass through them and somehow we can't

         16  lease out the space.  So, we're hopeful that we'll

         17  be able to jump- start this process again, and

         18  either through our own means lease out the space, or

         19  go back to the system that we had before where we

         20  had one master lessee who then leased out the space.

         21    I believe EDC is trying to marry these projects

         22  with what they are doing at the Battery Maritime

         23  building.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  On that note

         25  Commissioner, I know that you had mentioned an idea
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          2  that I thought was wonderful about creating a

          3  connection between those two buildings.

          4                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Yes, there

          5  is some talk on EDC's part.  There is a natural

          6  connection between the two buildings, and we could

          7  break through and create a bridge that would connect

          8  the two buildings.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  And that's

         10  the gorgeous Maritime Building that sits just to the

         11   --

         12                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  -- Left as

         14  you look out on the water, so that would create this

         15   --

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  It would

         17  create a destination and an ability.  As you know,

         18  not only do we transport tens of thousands of Staten

         19  Island residents each day but there are many

         20  tourists who come.  The whole goal is that it would

         21  be a destination to them once they got off the ferry

         22  that they could then go to the Battery Maritime

         23  Building.  I think that the, and I'm not at EDC so I

         24  can't tell you, but I think their vision is really a

         25  food court, similar to what we see in other Cities.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  The status

          3  of that retail consultant that EDC is managing that

          4  contract?

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  They would

          6  actually hire the retail consultant who would work

          7  on this project for us.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Have they

          9  done that yet?

         10                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  They have

         11  someone identified and we just had a meeting

         12  yesterday and we're trying to work out the logistics

         13  of bringing the person on board.  Let me just say

         14  that we talked about BRT and the BRT routes, we

         15  believe that the BRT route that we have chosen on

         16  Hylan Boulevard would bring people more quickly to

         17  the Staten Island Ferry, and so that would be a

         18  better option for folks as opposed to having people

         19  drive them to the Ferry or they themselves drive

         20  themselves to the ferry, we're more hopeful that the

         21  BRT route, people would then take the bus to the

         22  Staten Island Ferry, and therefore, if it's a

         23  quicker ride, people would be more inclined to use

         24  it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  But isn't
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          2  the BRT connection over the Verrazano Bridge to the

          3  R- train?  Or you could do both?

          4                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  No, no,

          5  right, right.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEBER:  We

          7  have two initiatives underway.  We have an

          8  initiative on Victory Boulevard-

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Right.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEBER:  -- To

         11  test signal prioritization.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Got you.

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEBER:  --

         14  That route would carry passengers to the Staten

         15  Island Ferry terminal.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Got you,

         17  okay.  And the -- okay.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  The last

         19  point as for expanding service, as you know, the

         20  last couple of years we have expanded service in a

         21  number of areas, and we have agreed to share with

         22  the City Council how many people have used that

         23  increased service and now that our counters are

         24  working in a more reliable fashion, to be able to

         25  share with you the actual numbers of people taking
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          2  the Staten Island Ferry.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  When could

          4  the Committee look to receive those numbers?

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Two months.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Absolutely

          7  under your Commissionership, if that's the right

          8  word, we have more ferry service now than we've ever

          9  had before, however, when we're making a 30 year

         10  plan, my point is that I would hope that that plan

         11  would include some paragraphs or some pages on how

         12  using the ferry and expanding service in all

         13  different ways could allow it to grow and to add to

         14  the sustainability to, if you will, of the City.

         15                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  I think

         16  there are two points that I would just like to make

         17  about that.  One, as part of our Staten Island Task

         18  Forces, you know we've been working with SITOA

         19  (phonetic) to really make their service a lot

         20  better, and SITOA is the feeder right into the ferry

         21  terminals.  So as good as we can make SITOA, then

         22  that will lead more people to take the ferry.

         23                 The second point is that I think, and

         24  I don't want to speak for Rohit or his group, but

         25  one of the areas that we're looking at is areas of
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          2  growth where more and more people are moving to in

          3  parts of the City and clearly, as you know

          4  Councilman, the Southern part of Staten Island is an

          5  immensely popular area and there's a great increase

          6  in population, and I think talking globally about

          7  more ferry service, I think one of the things that

          8  this plan will look at is how we create ferry

          9  service from the Southern portion of Staten Island

         10  so that people don't have to necessarily take mass

         11  transit or drive to get to the Staten Island Ferry.

         12  I would agree with you, it is the jewel in the

         13  crown, but we should have the ability in the City to

         14  create ferry service from other points as well.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  I got that

         16  in your testimony but I just wanted to make sure

         17  that we're not missing any opportunity we have with

         18  the ferry's and again there will also be great

         19  growth on the Northshore as well with the zoning

         20  changes and the sort of, you know, a lot of

         21  developers are coming in now it will be like the, I

         22  hate to use the, next Hoboken if you will, but there

         23  will be great growth there as well.  Let me say the

         24  Long Island City would be better, sorry, or the next

         25  Williamsburg.  But the focus there is the growth as
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          2  well, so I just urge the panelists to consider in

          3  the plan not to overlook the fact that the ferry,

          4  existing already is a great means to encourage the

          5  sustainability of the City by using it to its

          6  maximum, and again Commissioner, we wish you all the

          7  best.  It was a pleasure working with you.

          8                 Thank you.

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         11  Member McMahon. We are joined by Council Member

         12  Diana Reyna from Brooklyn and Council Member Oliver

         13  Koppell from the Bronx.

         14                 We now have questions from Council

         15  Member Brewer. We have questions from a couple more

         16  Council Members, and then our next panel will

         17  consist of Kathryn Wylde from the Partnership for

         18  NYC and Bill Egan from the Queens Chamber of

         19  Commerce.

         20                 Council Member Brewer.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         22  very much.  I know there are many sustainable

         23  questions but certainly this is about transportation

         24  and I know that under your leadership Commissioner,

         25  you have done a lot for those who want to go by
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          2  other than car, you've tried subway coordination,

          3  certainly the bicycle, et cetera. And my question

          4  is, with your one month, two month, whatever plan

          5  for getting a possible diagram for how we're going

          6  to reduce traffic congestion, because that would be

          7  part of what today's hearing is about.  Are you

          8  thinking about the big picture items, such as the

          9  Chairman listed, and then at the same time, maybe

         10  some short- term solutions that we who are in

         11  Manhattan are not only trying to think of how people

         12  come in from other parts, but once they get here

         13  what do they do?  They have a back- up of buses, BRT

         14  works for sure for certain routes coming in, but

         15  once you're in Manhattan, are there ways we can

         16  reduce traffic when you're here?

         17                 Now in my neighborhood, thanks to the

         18  awesome Borough Commissioner of Manhattan whom I

         19  praise constantly, we're going to be talking about

         20  that at a hearing.  And there are ways that we tried

         21  to outline, simple things that the MTA has to

         22  coordinate with you on what kind of measures you use

         23  to get on and off a bus, how you get on and off a

         24  bus, how you not only clear the BRT lanes, which

         25  possibly would be cleared but just the regular bus
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          2  lanes, et cetera.  This Commissioners been trying,

          3  MTA perhaps on many levels doing it's part, it's not

          4  happening.  So the question is, are you going to

          5  have like short- term, long- term goals so that

          6  people can see that there's some hope here.

          7  Obviously other ways of moving around would be part

          8  of it.  I'm one of these people, people are attached

          9  to their car in a way that is challenging for those

         10  of us who don't have a car to understand.  But the

         11  fact is parking always becomes a concern.  I don't

         12  quite know why it has to be such high priority but

         13  it does for those who are attached to their car.

         14  But then how do you give them something else as

         15  pleasant as being in that car so that they will get

         16  out of that car?   And that's what we need in

         17  Manhattan.  I don't know if it's something

         18  innovative about crossing in a different mode, there

         19  has always been this Cross 42nd street ideas, et

         20  cetera.  So I guess my question is, are you going to

         21  have big and small, short- term and long- term,

         22  picking up on some of the things that have been

         23  proposed over the years, but nobody has ever said

         24  this is going to work, we're going to try this.

         25                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And what's

          3  the short- term list, just to give us some idea.

          4                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Well Council Member,

          5  as I was saying to Chairman, we don't have a list

          6  yet.  But I think we are fully cognizant of two

          7  things that I think come from what you're saying.

          8  First of all, that if you think about commuting,

          9  commuting is not just what you do when you get on

         10  the subway to when you get off the subway.  It is

         11  everything from when you leave your house to when

         12  you get into your office.  And that includes, in

         13  virtually case in New York City, it includes

         14  walking, right because most people don't have

         15  parking in whatever building they're headed to, so

         16  even if you drive, part of your commute is walking

         17  on a sidewalk.  If you take the subway, part of your

         18  commute is walking.  If you take a ferry, in fact

         19  many cases, part of your commute is a cross town

         20  bus, or a north/south subway.  So we are certainly

         21  thinking about the entire trip.  We also know that

         22  commuting is a major issue.  It's one of the things

         23  we do everyday, but it's not the only kind of trip.

         24  So what people do once they're in Manhattan is

         25  important to think about.  Internal circulation, as

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  well as radial, and of course we also need to think

          3  about what people do when they're not commuting

          4  because traffic doesn't necessarily go away on

          5  Saturday and Sunday, and the majority of New Yorkers

          6  actual work in the borough in which they live, and

          7  not in Manhattan.  So one of our challenges is not

          8  just to think about the in and out trips into the

          9  CBD, even though one of the reasons that there

         10  attracted to think about is just by the nature of

         11  how transit works, so those are the easiest to move

         12  onto transit.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I won't

         14  belabor the point. My question is in the short- term

         15  to think about how just regular buses can move more

         16  quickly.  We've all been trying, we've had hearing

         17  and discussions but it's still our challenge.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         20  Member Brewer. Questions from Council Member Mealy.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Good

         22  afternoon, I want to say congratulations and wish

         23  you all the best.  I just want to concur with

         24  Chairman Liu, with the Plan 2030, at least should be

         25  two year plan somewhere in there where we could see
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          2  the success of what is being put forward for the

          3  City as a whole.  And that's just a statement that I

          4  wanted to say.  But as we all know, MTA Agency holds

          5  the key to relieve all our problems related to

          6  transit capacity and traveling time in New York

          7  City, and the control of the express bus and the

          8  subway system.  How are your Departments going to

          9  work better with the MTA and how will the NYPD play

         10  a part in this?  Just like our Councilman Brewer

         11  said, we've been trying with the bus lanes for a

         12  good while now.  No matter what we do, it has to be

         13  enforcement with the police, so are the police

         14  included in your meetings because I don't see it

         15  here.  It's just MTA and DOT.

         16                 MR. AGGARWALA:  I think we are

         17  certainly talking to the police department to figure

         18  out how we can facilitate the better enforcement of

         19  things such as bus lane rules.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  But I know

         21  this department right here, the transportation been

         22  trying to do that.  What will be a new thing that

         23  you would do to try to relieve this congestion.

         24                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  If I can

         25  just talk about, and matter of fact I'm going up on
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          2  Tuesday to Albany to talk about this, in a lot of

          3  other Cities they have cameras in bus lanes and if

          4  cars go into these bus lanes, then they are given a

          5  violation for going in.  We have tried in the past

          6  to get this bill passed in Albany and we have been

          7  thwarted along the way.  We have many routes in the

          8  City where we have express bus lanes, Madison

          9  Avenue, Lexington Avenue just to name a few and

         10  unless you have a police officer at every

         11  intersection stopping those cars from going into the

         12  bus lane, well they don't do it.  We continue to

         13  make as part of our legislative package up in

         14  Albany, the ability to have cameras in these bus

         15  lanes and issue moving violations to those cars that

         16  illegally use those bus lanes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  And it's a

         18  certain time I can say, will it be from --

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Well the bus

         20  lanes are operated at various times, they're not all

         21  during the day.  The one on Madison Avenue operates

         22  in the evening, I think it's something from two to

         23  six, or two to seven. The one on Lexington Avenue

         24  its a Southbound street so it operates in the

         25  morning, so we would like to have the ability to put
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          2  those cameras up, work with the MTA and to be able

          3  to issue violations to people who violate those bus

          4  lanes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Have you ever

          6  thought about, because MTA they issue summonses just

          7  as well, MTA, --

          8                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Well the way

          9  that they work --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  -- I just

         11  remembered, I'm sorry.

         12                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  -- Yes, the

         13  way that they work is they are putting a police

         14  officer on and he has to jump off the bus, get to

         15  the car, and issue the -- it's not a very efficient

         16  way of issuing a violation.  It would be much better

         17  to have the camera capture the license plates and

         18  just the same way our red light camera works, issue

         19  a violation not the individual, but to the car who

         20  has illegally accessed the bus lane.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Okay, but did

         22  you hear what I said about the MTA, they are issuing

         23  summonses just as well for people who would be in a

         24  bus lane?

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Yes, they're
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          2  doing that --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Okay, all

          4  right.

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  -- But its

          6  not in efficient manner.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  NYPD is doing

          8  it also?

          9                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  With them,

         10  in conjunction.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MEALY:  Okay, thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         14  Member Mealy, questions from Council Member Lappin.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Thank you Mr.

         16  Chairman.  I also wanted to congratulate you

         17  Commissioner and wish you the best of luck, and

         18  respond to a couple of things in your testimony

         19  about Bus Rapid Transit, I agree, not everybody is

         20  going to be happy.  I anticipate that I will hear

         21  from a number of my constituents along the way but I

         22  did want to say that in response to your request for

         23  help, and I am very firmly supportive and excited

         24  and we fought very hard for First and Second

         25  Avenue's to be included and I think, as much as we
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          2  can communicate with them, maintain a dialog between

          3  the constituents and DOT, hopefully we'll be able to

          4  work out reasonable concerns that pop up along the

          5  way understanding that not everyone is going to be

          6  happy with the end result but I think it's a

          7  fantastic project.  I look forward to working with

          8  you on that.

          9                 My two quick questions, one, and you

         10  talked about bicycling safety and that's something

         11  that is of concern to me as well and I sent you a

         12  letter about the high number of pedestrian and

         13  cycling deaths around the 59th Street Bridge and I

         14  think that response from DOT was that there was a

         15  study that was being conducted and there might be

         16  some more information in February but I hadn't heard

         17  a response.  So I just wanted to see if that was

         18  something that you were working on?

         19                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Well we did,

         20  in conjunction with the Health Department issue a

         21  report.  I don't think that's what the letter

         22  referred to.  So quite frankly, I would have to

         23  check what study we're referring to.  I don't know

         24  if we're doing one visa vis around the 59th Street

         25  Bridge or not, so I'm at a loss here.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  There was a

          3  study that had been done that laid out your

          4  statistics, --

          5                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  -- And that's

          7  where we gathered the information --

          8                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  -- That

         10  showed --

         11                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  We issued

         12  that in the Fall.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  -- Right.

         14  And that's where we saw that there higher incidents'

         15  around the Queensboro Bridge. So in response to that

         16  I contact DOT to see what we could do to try to fix

         17  that.  And so I wanted to follow- up and see if

         18  there were any further plans being made to address

         19  some of those statistics.

         20                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  I would have

         21  to go back and check with Ryan Russo (phonetic) who

         22  runs our Ped and Bike Program at DOT, but I'm pretty

         23  sure he's on it.  I will be able to get you some

         24  information.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  If you could
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          2  ask him to follow- up, that would be great.

          3                 And the last thing that I wanted to

          4  mention is ferry service, this is something that I'm

          5  also very excited about, and make sure DOT was

          6  aware, I've been speaking with Deputy Mayor

          7  Doctoroff's Office but I put money into the capital

          8  budget for the out- year seed money that could be

          9  used for a ferry dock on Roosevelt Island.  I know

         10  the Administration is looking at the East River,

         11  looking at Queens, looking at Brooklyn, but I think

         12  it's important to include Roosevelt Island now, in

         13  the pilot phase, not just maybe down the road in

         14  terms of expansion because it could very easily be

         15  linked to Queens to Brooklyn, it's an area that's

         16  underserved in terms of transportation and I think

         17  it's an opportunity that we could work together on.

         18                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  We're always

         19  looking for ferry opportunities, so thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN:  Thank you Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Council

         23  Member Lappin, and that's it.  Oh, that's almost it.

         24    Questions from Council Member Koppell and then

         25  we'll hear from Kathryn Wylde and Bill Egan.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I apologize

          3  and if I'm asking a question that was asked before I

          4  came, because I was late, just say and I won't make

          5  you repeat it.

          6                 First let me wish you well in your

          7  new endeavors, --

          8                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  -- And thank

         10  you for your service to the City.

         11                 Did you discuss the issue of

         12  congestion pricing and limitations on cars in the

         13  Central Business District?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WEBER:  We did

         15  not yet.

         16                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  No.  You're

         17  the first to ask that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay, oh I'm

         19  surprised that I'm the first to ask it.  Without

         20  necessarily endorsing the proposal, I do think it is

         21  something that has to be looked at and I know there

         22  has been discussion about it.  Is there any serious

         23  effort underway to evaluate it so we could at least

         24  look at some ideas and I know some of my colleagues

         25  are very much opposed to it. I haven't made up my

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  mind on it even though I represent an out- of

          3  borough District, I still think it's something

          4  that's got to be looked at.  I know that many of us

          5  are familiar and I'm personally familiar because of

          6  some travel I did with London where they generally

          7  feel that it's been a success.  So I'm wondering.

          8                 MR. AGGARWALA:  As you know, Kathy

          9  Wylde is a member of our Advisory Board and several

         10  members of our Sustainability Advisory Board have

         11  argued that we should be looking at congestion

         12  pricing as part of this effort.  And in fact, many

         13  of the people who have written in on our website and

         14  come to our various meetings have also suggested it.

         15    Therefore, we've taken that advice seriously and

         16  we are trying to learn as much as we can in a short

         17  amount of time about the experiences that London and

         18  some other Cities have had with various forms of

         19  congestion pricing.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I'm glad to

         21  hear that.  I think that it is important to have a

         22  dialogue on it without committing to it.  It's

         23  something I think needs careful study.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much
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          2  Council Member Koppell.  Commissioner Weinshall,

          3  Deputy Commissioner Weber, and Rohit, Director

          4  Aggarwala.  Thanks very much.  We look forward to

          5  hearing from you and really I would like to see some

          6  meat on the bones.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 MR. AGGARWALA:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I guess we'll hear

         10  from Kathryn Wylde to be followed by Bill Egan, to

         11  then be followed by a panel of transportation

         12  advocates, Paul White, Teresa Toro, and Gene

         13  Russianoff.

         14                 MS. WYLDE:  Good afternoon, and thank

         15  you Chairman Liu and Council Members, it's a

         16  pleasure to be here and as having been a Member for

         17  the last six months of the Mayor's Advisory Council

         18  on Sustainability, I really want to say that it has

         19  been a great experience.  It has been one which

         20  Councilman Gennaro has represented you well and the

         21  Council Staff have been involved, so I really feel

         22  like this has been a partnership in developing this

         23  plan and I'm glad that the Council is following up

         24  in the specific areas of interest because they're

         25  ones we certainly share.
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          2                 I testified before, your hearing in

          3  December, on the express bus issues and I won't be

          4  redundant with what I said then but I think that

          5  what we heard at that point was until we saw the

          6  traffic congestion problem it's hard to add more

          7  express buses and do what we ought to do to provide

          8  mass transit options for the people of the five

          9  boroughs in particular.  So I'm really glad that you

         10  are nothing if not persistent in following up on

         11  this and we support your position.

         12                 As you know, we issued a study in

         13  December which documented a $13 billion cost of

         14  traffic congestion to the New York region, so this

         15  not a free burden we're carrying, it's a cost, one

         16  might say a tax, the congestion tax that every New

         17  Yorker is paying.  Every business has higher cost of

         18  doing business.  It's not just a matter of

         19  inconvenience of getting to work.  Everybody is

         20  paying this cost.  It's in every price of consumer

         21  goods, the cost of unreliability and delay

         22  associated with moving around our City and if we're

         23  going to be competitive with International Cities,

         24  like London, we have to do something about it.

         25                 I think the other key points I'd like
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          2  to make to have you think about, 1) as you point

          3  out, we've got a five borough problem but they're

          4  regional projects and there is a regional capital

          5  investment need in the 28 county metro region and we

          6  don't really have a vehicle for having conversations

          7  across the tristate 28 County Metro Region to solve

          8  our transit and traffic problems, as well as the

          9  five boroughs and we ought to be doing that and I

         10  think the Council should be part of that  2)  In

         11  terms of figuring out how to address the issues of

         12  how we fund the needed capital improvements.  We

         13  think that's very important.  That's one of the

         14  reasons that we're interested in congestion pricing

         15  as an option for a source of funds for the needed

         16  increase investment in better system, better ferry

         17  system, so I think that is another important thing.

         18  There is an opportunity to get new federal funds, to

         19  study and also supplement the funding we have now to

         20  add new public transit services through an Urban

         21  Partnerships Agreement.  We are hoping that the

         22  Council will endorse the idea that the City should

         23  actively pursue an Urban Partnership Agreement with

         24  the federal government.  There's an RFP on the

         25  streets right now that's due in April 30th and we'd

                                                            68

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  love to see New York participating in that effort,

          3  which would include a study of use of congestion

          4  pricing, whether it's HOT priced lanes on various of

          5  our clogged highways, or whether it is a congestion

          6  pricing district in our most congested areas.

          7                 In closing I would like to endorse

          8  the comment that I heard in DOT Commissioner Iris

          9  Weinshall's testimony, about the need, and this is

         10  something that we've been arguing four years and

         11  have been frustrated by, ferries are a wonderful

         12  opportunity that is underexploited in New York.

         13  Until we link the ferry system to our overall mass

         14  transit system, we won't utilize them effectively,

         15  for the City or for the Region.  Up to now the MTA

         16  has had no interest in trying to take some

         17  responsibility in management of these services.  I

         18  really think it is time we push this as part of this

         19  comprehensive planning effort because to ignore our

         20  waterways as a great option for moving people

         21  without causing additional traffic problems, I think

         22  this is really important.  So that's really it for

         23  what I have to say.

         24                 Thank you.  I've presented more

         25  formal written testimony and I thank you for the
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          2  opportunity to be with you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for your

          4  testimony, both spoken and written.  Thank you.

          5                 How about now Bill?  Bill Egan from

          6  the Queens Chamber of Commerce.  He'll be followed

          7  by a panel consisting of Paul White, Teresa Toro,

          8  and Gene Russianoff.

          9                 MR. EGAN:  As Kathy says, this is

         10  deja vu all over again.  I think we did this in

         11  December at the hearing on the express bus issue.

         12                 Good afternoon Council Member Liu,

         13  Members of the Transportation Committee.  My name is

         14  Bill Egan, I'm the Executive Vice President of the

         15  Queens Chamber of Commerce.  Thanks for the

         16  opportunity to testify before you today regarding

         17  improving travel times by adding transit capacity.

         18                 The Chamber applauds NYC 2030's

         19  Sustainability Goal to improve travel times.  We've

         20  researched the Census Bureau's information regarding

         21  commute times and found data comparing the commute

         22  time for drivers into Manhattan to those from

         23  similar areas who take mass transit.  I have

         24  attached a graph of this information for your

         25  review.  The data shows that the average commute for
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          2  people who take mass transit from Queens is at a

          3  minimum, double the commute time for those who

          4  drive.  As an example, the average time it takes to

          5  drive from Bayside to Midtown Manhattan is 32

          6  minutes, while those taking mass transit have a 110

          7  minute commute.

          8                 This is a serious problem and one

          9  that certainly needs to be addressed before anyone

         10  can seriously propose measures to force people out

         11  of their cars and onto mass transit.  New York

         12  Metropolitan Transportation Council data show that

         13  in the past ten years the number of people driving

         14  into Manhattan's central business district increased

         15  by approximately one percent, whereas cumulative

         16  growth in subway ridership to the central business

         17  district increased by 42 percent.  A fair

         18  interpretation of this data is that if a viable mass

         19  transit system is provided to commuters, one that

         20  comfortably accommodates its riders and is as fast

         21  or faster than driving, people will take it.

         22                 Presently, however, our subway system

         23  is at capacity.  It could not handle an increase of

         24  165,000 commuters, the number of people who would be

         25  forced to switch to it if measures such as
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          2  congestion pricing are implemented.  In fact several

          3  areas have no access to the subway or express bus

          4  service, a problem Council Member Liu has had the

          5  foresight to already hold hearings about.  All of

          6  this emphasizes the importance of taking a hard look

          7  at mass transit travel times and the need to improve

          8  the mass transit system.  Once these improvements

          9  are mad, the Chamber believes that people will chose

         10  to take it, obviating the need for the drastic

         11  measures to reduce the number of cars driving into

         12  Manhattan.

         13                 One final point, NYMTC forecasts that

         14  the amount of traffic congestion in Manhattan will

         15  actually decline in the future, and I've attached a

         16  chart containing information provided by NYMTC

         17  showing that the average speeds in Manhattan will

         18  increase by the year 2030 indicating a congestion

         19  decrease.  Therefore, if New York is in any sort of

         20  transportation crisis it is one pertaining to mass

         21  transit, not transit in general, and that is where

         22  the Chamber believes the Administration and the City

         23  Council should focus their attention, on improving

         24  mass transit system. Not to sound trite but, if you

         25  build it, they will come.
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          2                 The Chamber has joined a coalition

          3  titled The Committee to Keep New York City

          4  Congestion Tax Free, and joining us on this

          5  coalition is Joint Council 16 of the International

          6  Brotherhood of Teamsters, an organization

          7  representing over 120,000 working men and women in

          8  the greater New York area.  Gary LaBarbera, the

          9  President of the Joint Council is at an industry

         10  conference today and unfortunately could not make

         11  this hearing.  He ask that we submit his testimony.

         12  It's attached to ours.

         13                 Thank you very much again for your

         14  time today.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you Mr. Egan.

         16    Thanks for your testimony as always.  It might be

         17  deja vu all over again but that's going to happen

         18  over and over again this year.

         19                 MR. EGAN:  I suspect so.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         21                 Now let me ask our Transportation

         22  Advocates to come to the Witness Table:  Paul White

         23  from Transportation Alternative, Teresa Toro from

         24  TriState Transportation Campaign, and Gene

         25  Russianoff from the Straphangers Campaign.  They
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          2  will be followed by a panel consisting of Ramon Cruz

          3  of Environmental Defense, George Haikalis of the

          4  Institute for Rational Urban Mobility, and Lauren

          5  George of the Citizens Committee for NYC.  Any order

          6  that you folks would like.

          7                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  Okay, I'm Gene

          8  Russianoff with the New York Public Interest

          9  Research Group Straphangers Campaign. I'll try and

         10  be brief. You should have copies of my written

         11  statement.

         12                 Not surprisingly, we're in support of

         13  increasing transit capacity and I believe there are

         14  specific things that can be done from increasing the

         15  pace for computerized signal systems on the subways,

         16  increasing the size of the subway and bus fleets,

         17  and to helping with bus rapid transit.

         18                 In my statement, before I get to the

         19  point about ways to increase capacity, I talk about

         20  what I think is another important goal, which will

         21  put more pressure on the transit system, which is

         22  reducing congestion.  If you look closely at the

         23  2030 Plan, it really doesn't speak directly to

         24  reducing congestion, which I think is critical to

         25  improving air quality and the quality of life in the
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          2  City.  At the same time, the City tries to achieve

          3  that goal, I think it is important to keep

          4  pedestrians in mind while motorists should have more

          5  reliable and less maddening trips. Pedestrians must

          6  also benefit from having wider sidewalks, safer

          7  conditions, and faster trips in what I believe is

          8  the greatest walking City in the world.

          9                 In terms of adding transit capacity,

         10  it's a challenge to the system.  Right now with 1.5

         11  billion subway trips a year, we have the highest

         12  level of riderships in 1952 and the average weekday

         13  ridership on the subways and buses of 7.2 million

         14  people, really an extraordinary figure.

         15                 The City can help add transit

         16  capacity by providing added funding for the

         17  metropolitan transportation authorities, Core

         18  Rebuilding Program and I guess I could say I would

         19  have helped that the City would have stressed more

         20  the fact that along with Second Avenue and East Side

         21  Access another even more important expenditure is

         22  for the MTA's core capital program, the buying of

         23  new subway cars, the replacing of track.  Unless we

         24  continue to invest in the system that we have, we're

         25  going to go the way of some other big Cities that
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          2  failed to do so and New York failed to do so in the

          3  60s and 70s and as a result our transit system was a

          4  tremendous drag on the City's economy and life in

          5  the 80s and we turned that around through $50

          6  billion, that's 50 billion with a B since 1982 and

          7  so it's just critical that continue to be the case.

          8                 The kinds of things we recommend are,

          9  buy more subway cars and buses as a way to allow for

         10  more service and at the same time modernize the

         11  signal systems.  We've had the L- line moved to

         12  what's called communication base train control,

         13  which because it uses computerized controls allows

         14  for closer spacing of cars more safely and as a

         15  result you can provide more service.  If you want to

         16  provide more service, you have to have the

         17  infrastructure.  You have to have the signals, you

         18  have to have the cars, and you also need the

         19  capacity in your rail yards.  All that requires

         20  advance planning and in my view, a greater

         21  commitment by the City.

         22                 Right now the City funds the MTA

         23  capital program, the core capital program, to the

         24  tune of $70 million a year. That's less than 3

         25  percent of the $11 billion figure for the transit
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          2  system and it's less than Mayor Bloomberg's

          3  successors, Rudolph Giuliani and David Dinkins and

          4  Ed Koch, all of whom gave between 100 million to 200

          5  million a year to the core program.  So we would

          6  like to see the Mayor, as part of this plan, step up

          7  to the plate and increase City's funding for fixing

          8  the existing system.  It's not enough to say, well,

          9  we're extending the 7, the truth is, they're

         10  extending a line to an area that is not going to be

         11  Chocoblock (phonetic) with transit riders to begin

         12  with and be a real loss leader for the MTA, a real

         13  operating loss leader.  It's the lines, the N and R

         14  that I use, or the E and the F for Queens, or the

         15  four, five, and six, these are the routes that move

         16  people around the City and we run a great risk

         17  without adequately funding them.

         18                 Time specific goals in the 2030

         19  timetable would help achieve the goal of added

         20  capacity by Mayor Bloomberg.  I personally would

         21  like to see the very expensive and difficult

         22  modernizing signal system guaranteed to be in place

         23  by 2025, or some year in this century, and so the

         24  pace is very slow and the City's help is desperately

         25  needed, and I thank you for listening.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Although according

          3  to MTA's own estimates, they'll have the signals up

          4  and running by 2020.

          5                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  Yes, these are the

          6  same people who said that the Fulton Transit Center

          7  would come in on time and under budget and I could

          8  go on with other estimates.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay.

         10                 MR. RUSSIANOFF:  I believe the

         11  capital needs our extraordinary -- the City wouldn't

         12  disagree with me, they're enormous.  And the City's

         13  failure to meet those needs in the 50s and 60s are

         14  the result, resulted in very difficult times for the

         15  City in the 70s and 80s, and we can't go back to the

         16  way it was.  It's a real worry.  If you look at the

         17  London underground, they built a whole new line, the

         18  Jubilee line, which is justly saluted as a great

         19  addition to the system, but they let the rest of the

         20  London underground rot, and as a result, their

         21  system is where we were in the early 80s, and I just

         22  don't want to see us go back to that time period.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         24                 MR. WHITE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         25  I'm Paul Steely White, Executive Director of
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          2  Transportation Alternatives.  I'm also here today

          3  testifying on behalf of the Citywide Coalition for

          4  Traffic Relief, Citywide group of 135 plus community

          5  groups, business groups, and others who have asked

          6  the Mayor to reduce traffic volumes in New York City

          7  by 15 percent by the end of 2009. The coalition had

          8  submitted a five point charter suggesting some ways

          9  to do this.  One of those includes a rigorous study

         10  of congestion pricing, not just a look at what other

         11  cities have done, but a rigorous study that actually

         12  figures out how to apply road pricing fairly and

         13  equitably in New York City.

         14                 It's been suggested that the best way

         15  to move New Yorkers out of their cars is to increase

         16  transit capacity.  While that's certainly important,

         17  I submit to you that the best way to get New Yorkers

         18  out of their cars is to get New Yorkers out of their

         19  cars.  Traffic management is what I'm talking about.

         20  The fact is that most drivers to Manhattan already

         21  have transit alternatives that their not taking

         22  largely because they get free parking.  Today, we

         23  released a study by Schaller Consulting showing that

         24  in fact 57 percent of Manhattan-bound drivers do not

         25  pay out of pocket for parking.  They have government
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          2  parking placards, their parking is reimbursed by

          3  their employer or their parking on our free curb

          4  sides.  So it's not so much about increasing transit

          5  capacity, as important as that is, but it's really

          6  about fixing the skewed economic incentives to

          7  drive.  Even in Staten Island, Brooklyn, Queens,

          8  most commuters to Manhattan already take transit by

          9  a ratio of five to one.  Let's think about the

         10  majority of so called outer borough commuters who

         11  are already suffering with bad transit and who could

         12  benefit from less traffic on the street. It's my

         13  hope that some of the transportation analysts

         14  working for the City are familiar with a study by

         15  Kenneth Small of the University of California, which

         16  found that just by taking cars off the road, you

         17  increase substantially transit capacity.  In fact in

         18  London, congestion pricing alone, bus improvements,

         19  et cetera, aside, actually sped buses by 9 percent

         20  while boosting service by 23 percent.  Talk about

         21  express buses.  The limiting factor is the fact that

         22  they can only do one trip per peak commute period

         23  because of traffic congestion.  If there are fewer

         24  cars on the road, if there's more exclusive lanes,

         25  those express buses can be doing at least a few
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          2  turnarounds during a morning commute, thus reducing

          3  the $11 subsidy per passenger that we understand

          4  they are paying now. So that's a big piece of the

          5  puzzle, is traffic relief and traffic management.

          6                 Right now we're managing garbage

          7  better than we're managing traffic in New York City.

          8    We have our waste management plan, but we don't

          9  have a traffic management plan.  So we need a set of

         10  incentives and disincentives like we have with

         11  garbage to encourage people to recycle or use

         12  transit and also to discourage unnecessary driving

         13  of which there is a lot.  We released a study

         14  earlier this week that found 50 percent of all

         15  traffic on some streets is simply cruising for

         16  parking.  That's unnecessary and that's wasteful and

         17  that has to stop.  In this very room, six weeks ago,

         18  City Council considered a bill that would set

         19  targets for New York City for reducing traffic and

         20  managing our traffic, not by 2030, but starting now

         21  in 2007.  Commissioner Weinshall testified in

         22  opposition to that smart bill.  It is our hope that

         23  the new Commissioner will have a change of heart and

         24  support Intro 199, the traffic relief bill which is

         25  the first step towards a sustainable New York City.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MS. TORO:  Good afternoon Mr. Chair,

          4  I'm Teresa Toro, New York City Coordinator for the

          5  TriState Transportation Campaign.

          6                 The goal of improving travel time as

          7  the City grows by expanding mass transit capacity is

          8  simultaneously a very obvious requirement for growth

          9  and liveability and a complex challenge for City and

         10  regional institutions.

         11                 To stand any chance of meeting the

         12  goal, City government's approach to transportation

         13  and planning in general is going to have to change

         14  significantly.

         15                 First, the City has to exert more

         16  interest and ownership over the mass transit system.

         17    Today, New York City elected officials and

         18  relevant executive departments take almost no

         19  substantive role in transit planning or oversight,

         20  and many play a mainly reactive role when immediate,

         21  small scale problems crop up. Nonetheless, work on

         22  massive capital investments and service plans that

         23  will help shape the City for decades or longer is

         24  going on daily at New York City Transit and the MTA.

         25    Everyone knows about the Second Avenue Subway and
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          2  7 line extension, but what is the next generation of

          3  transit capacity projects in store for the City?

          4  What is being done about the Queens and Brooklyn

          5  neighborhoods whose subway lines are near or over

          6  capacity?  What is the long term answer for Staten

          7  Island which long ago began drowning in its own

          8  traffic?  City Hall used to have a Mayor's Office of

          9  Transportation to raise these questions by acting as

         10  formal liaison to the regional transportation

         11  agencies and stay closely abreast of issues of and

         12  plans.  We're very encouraged by the can- do and

         13  collaborative effort on the part of the new MTA

         14  leadership and urge you to explore regular proactive

         15  ways of joint City MTA work.

         16                 It's not just from a transportation

         17  point of view that these questions need to be looked

         18  at.  Our testimony regarding the massive Atlantic

         19  Yards development proposal stated current planning

         20  procedures and functions in New York City are not

         21  significantly coherent across the spectrum ranging

         22  from the developer to the relevant city agencies and

         23  state public authorities, such as the City

         24  Department of Transportation, New York City Transit

         25  and the ESDC to coordinate and promote the joint
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          2  development, infrastructure and consensus building

          3  plans to smoothly integrate something of this scale

          4  and ambition into the fabric of the City.  The

          5  Mayor's 2030 plan looks ahead to far more commercial

          6  and residential development in the City, but there

          7  is no governmental function here today that jointly

          8  addresses the siting of development and the

          9  transportation requirements of that addition

         10  residential and commercial space and activity.  As

         11  recently as last year, the City DOT Commissioners

         12  Office was passing off the problem of over capacity

         13  on Brooklyn's L- train as an MTA problem.  Even

         14  though it was City government that had just rezoned

         15  Greenpoint and Williamsburg for 100 percent

         16  residential growth even after the L line had already

         17  become a 24/7 mosh pit (sic) and Transit officials

         18  admitted that the areas growth had taken them by

         19  surprise.  So a major question that we urge you to

         20  raise and help solve is how you get the various

         21  planning functions pulling together for common

         22  goals?

         23                 There are some nascent beginnings to

         24  this.  The Bloomberg Administration's interest in

         25  the 7- line extension is one. Joint City DOT and

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  City Transit work on Bus Rapid Transit lines is

          3  another.  We believe that bus rapid transit is going

          4  to be one of the key ways that the growing City can

          5  meet its transportation needs because BRT is so much

          6  cheaper and easier to implement than new rail lines,

          7  however, that will require a major change in

          8  attitude by the City DOT, which has long been

          9  preoccupied with keeping car traffic moving above

         10  all else.  We're concerned that the present round of

         11  BRT planning has come up with half- hearted designs

         12  because of DOT's unwillingness to reallocate lanes

         13  from car traffic to bus transit and is heading in

         14  the direction of replicating the weak and

         15  discredited City bus lanes that we have today which

         16  are constantly blocked by cars, cabs, and trucks.

         17  BRT plans implemented and being planned in Cities

         18  like San Francisco have truly separate bus ways that

         19  don't require police enforcement but that

         20  necessitates ambitious overhauling of major avenues

         21  so they function as true transit corridors, not just

         22  streets that happen to have a mix of buses and other

         23  traffic.

         24                 Finally, it's important to note that

         25  we're here today discussing mass transit expansion
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          2  as the MTA prepares to announce the biggest budget

          3  deficits in its history.  Paying for the transit

          4  system we need is going to require a City, State and

          5  federal participation.  Putting together the funding

          6  package for the things we are talking about is going

          7  to require hard work and constructive input from the

          8  City.  It can't just be waived off as any longer as

          9  City officials so often do, as an MTA thing or

         10  Albany's problem.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  As always, thank

         13  you very much for providing your important input.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 Now we would like to ask Ramon Cruz

         16  from Environmental Defense, George Haikalis from

         17  Institute for Rational Urban Mobility, and Lauren

         18  George from Citizens Committee for NYC, to be

         19  followed by Glenn McAnanama, Bart Chezar, and Doreen

         20  Blair Skipper, and Bruce Schaller.

         21                 MR. CRUZ:  Good afternoon, and thank

         22  you for the opportunity to testify today.  My name

         23  is Ramon Cruz from the Living Cities Program at

         24  Environmental Defense, a National Environmental

         25  Advocacy Organization.  The Living Cities Program is
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          2  dedicated to practical solutions to secure clean

          3  air, water and land in urban centers like New York.

          4                 With a million more people by 2030 in

          5  New York, travel times are bound to get even worse

          6  unless we address public transportation needs of

          7  underserved communities, such as many in Queens and

          8  Brooklyn.  We need to give people from those

          9  communities an alternative to driving their cars.

         10  We will also need to focus on a few choice points

         11  throughout Manhattan where the capacity of mass

         12  transit needs to be expanded to accommodate the

         13  predicted increase in ridership.  However, as we all

         14  know, the biggest obstacle to increase transit

         15  capacity is the lack of necessary funds.  We need to

         16  find new ways to finance those inevitable transit

         17  needs.  We, therefore, should take a serious look at

         18  what other Cities have done and study how they have

         19  managed to raise funds to improve mass transit.

         20                 One creative way of course is

         21  congestion pricing and for example in London, in

         22  2006, congestion pricing made a net profit of

         23  approximately $240 million and these net revenues

         24  are being spent largely on improved bus services

         25  within the City of London.  London has increased
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          2  traffic speed since then by 37 percent and reduced

          3  congestion by 40 percent in its Central Business

          4  District.  Buses delayed has been cut in half making

          5  bus travel much more viable.

          6                 In Singapore public transit use has

          7  increased by 20 percent and traffic congestion has

          8  dropped by 53 percent while the average travel speed

          9  has increased form 11 miles per hour to 21 miles per

         10  hour under congestion pricing.

         11                 In New York City, the Partnership

         12  Report that has been mentioned before today,

         13  predicted that dramatic congestion relief to many

         14  other communities in New York City if there is a 15

         15  percent reduction in the Central Business District.

         16  For example: Downtown Brooklyn, Greenpoint,

         17  Williamsburg, and Long Island City all predicted to

         18  benefit with congestion relief between 24 and 29

         19  percent.

         20                 In short, congestion pricing in

         21  conjunction with the expansion of mass transit will

         22  improve travel times, relieve congestion and benefit

         23  air quality in New York City.  New York City right

         24  now, the air quality and the New Yorkers health are

         25  suffering because of our failure to do something
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          2  about traffic congestion. New York's air quality is

          3  among the worst in the nation and presently all five

          4  New York City Boroughs failed to meet basic public

          5  health standards for ozone and fine particular

          6  matter, both of which come from vehicular emissions.

          7    Mobile sources account for upwards of 90 percent

          8  of the cancer risk from air pollution in New York

          9  City.  So air pollution from vehicle traffic has

         10  also been linked to heart attacks, reduced lung

         11  function, bronchitis, asthma attacks, et cetera.

         12  New York City residents suffer alarmingly high

         13  asthma rates, one in every eight adults has been

         14  diagnosed with asthma at some point in their lives.

         15  Traffic congestion in particular is worse for air

         16  quality than free- flowing traffic. Idling vehicles

         17  emit three times more VOCs, which are the precursors

         18  of the smog than moving vehicles.  Emissions of

         19  nitrogen oxides and carbon monoxide are also higher

         20  in highly congested conditions.

         21                 I'll cut my testimony there to save

         22  time but thanks a lot for the opportunity to

         23  testify.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Okay, but that was

         25  your whole testimony.
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          2                 MR. CRUZ:  Well --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

          4                 MR. CRUZ:  I cut different parts of

          5  the testimony but, yes, thank you --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You cut the last

          7  paragraph that says thank you for the opportunity to

          8  testify.  But I appreciate that.  Thank you.

          9  George, you want to proceed.

         10                 MR. HAIKALIS:  Let me figure out how

         11  to get this on here.

         12                 For many years the Institute for

         13  Rational Urban Mobility has been advancing its

         14  Livable City Transport Plan, a comprehensive package

         15  of fifteen strategies that would greatly enhance New

         16  York City's transit system while reducing congestion

         17  and improving the walking environment.  This plan

         18  could serve as a model for achieving the mobility

         19  goals of the City's Sustainability Plan.  A copy is

         20  attached.  Today I would like to highlight just a

         21  few of the strategies contained in the plan.

         22                 1)  Light rail.  IRUM has long-

         23  hosted Vision 42, a plan for a river to river light

         24  rail line operating in a pedestrian only 42nd

         25  Street.  This project could be placed in service
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          2  before the Mayor completes his second term if he

          3  began now.  It could serve as a pilot project

          4  leading to a grid of auto- free light rail

          5  boulevards in Manhattan.  A map of one possible

          6  network is attached.  While there are many

          7  opportunities for bus rapid transit throughout the

          8  City, light rail in very dense locations provides

          9  the most appealing and efficient way to make the

         10  City more sustainable.  IRUM very much appreciates

         11  the invitation extended by yourself to its Vision 42

         12  Advisory Committee to participate in an Earth Week

         13  presentation in the Red Room right here in City

         14  Hall, on Thursday, April 19th.

         15                 2)  Regional rail.  Refashioning the

         16  commuter rail lines that serve New York City into a

         17  Regional Rail system, with frequent service,

         18  integrated fares and thru- running, can provide an

         19  order of magnitude gain in mobility in the next few

         20  years.  With thru- service at Penn Station, capacity

         21  would increase by 25 to 50 percent.  By running many

         22  more trains and allowing City residents to use their

         23  City MetroCards without payment of extra fares these

         24  priceless but underperforming rail assets could be

         25  much more useful.  Instead of building costly
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          2  passenger unfriendly high risk deep cavern stations

          3  some 150 feet below the street, under Grand Central

          4  Terminal or Penn Station, a link between the two

          5  stations and connections using existing platforms

          6  and tracks would produce a world- class Regional

          7  Rail system at one- third the cost of the current

          8  agency proposals.  Council members and the public

          9  are invited to see this Regional Rail plan now on

         10  display in the lobby of the Conde Nast building at

         11  42nd Street and Broadway which has been now extended

         12  till Friday March 9th.  I hope you will make a trip

         13  up there, all of you.

         14                 3)  Carrot and stick pricing.   In a

         15  City long associated with the hustle and bustle of

         16  trading on the floor of the New York Stock Exchange,

         17  all of us know that price matters. Well it's also

         18  true in allocating scarce transportation capacity.

         19  That's why in introducing a plan for cordon tolls

         20  around the Manhattan Central Business District, it

         21  is important to consider reducing or even

         22  eliminating entirely the fares charged for transit

         23  service.  Thanks to a generous grant recently

         24  announced by Theodore Kheel, IRUM will be exploring

         25  this combination of carrot and stick pricing over
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          2  the next few months.  IRUM greatly appreciates the

          3  cooperation extended by transport agencies to

          4  provide data for this study.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MS. GEORGE:  Hi, good afternoon Mr.

          7  Chairman.  My name is Lauren George with Citizens

          8  Committee for New York City. I'm here today to

          9  reiterate a lot of the points that my colleagues

         10  have already stated in the Citywide Coalition for

         11  Traffic Relief, as you know Mr. Chairman, Citizens

         12  Committee is in strong support of a trial of

         13  congestion pricing in the City and I would like to

         14  reiterate what Ms. Kathryn Wylde stated earlier,

         15  that the federal funds are available to the Urban

         16  Partnerships program for a trial of such initiative.

         17                 I've spoken with a lot of groups all

         18  throughout the City in the past few months about

         19  what their needs and ideas are related to traffic

         20  relief and in addition to obviously speeding up the

         21  buses, which I'm sure you're aware everyone in this

         22  room has had lots of problems with if you ever

         23  travel in outer boroughs. One obvious way to speed

         24  buses is to reduce the traffic on the streets.  We

         25  could fully utilize all of the freight capacity that
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          2  our City has to offer by expanding ferry service,

          3  expanding the use of float barges for freights and

          4  congestion pricing is one way to also increase

          5  revenue for transit capacity.

          6                 In the summary that's essentially

          7  basically reiterating all the points that have

          8  already been heard.  But thank you for the

          9  opportunity to testify today.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         11  much.  I just want to comment that Bus Rapid Transit

         12  obviously is a way to get people who ride buses

         13  through a busy area more quickly.  I'm very

         14  optimistic that that will work.  Some people have

         15  said that express buses -- it's difficult to have

         16  more express buses because there's too much

         17  congestion.  That's just not true.  For the most

         18  part, the express buses spend the time bringing

         19  people from the outer reaches of the City to

         20  Manhattan.  And in fact a lot of times people get to

         21  Manhattan and then jump on the subway to get to

         22  their final destination.  So the idea of having

         23  express buses move through traffic quicker, traffic

         24  within Manhattan quicker, that's not really the goal

         25  of the express buses.  And in fact, a lot of the
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          2  express buses that come in from Manhattan, they do

          3  have a dedicated lane on the Long Island Expressway

          4  that enables them to come into Manhattan far quicker

          5  than the individual drivers themselves could if they

          6  drove their own cars  So the speed question, I think

          7  there is still a fair amount of confusion between

          8  Bus Rapid Transit and express buses.  They're

          9  totally different.

         10                 Thank you very much for your input

         11  and for your succinct testimony.

         12                 Let me invite Glenn McAnanama, Bart

         13  Chezar, Doreen Blair- Skipper, and Bruce Schaller to

         14  testify.

         15                 MR. MCANANAMA:  Thank you.  Thank you

         16  for inviting us to testify this morning.  My name is

         17  Glenn McAnanama, I'm the President of Upper Green

         18  Side.  Upper Green Side is an all volunteer

         19  neighborhood environmental organization based on

         20  Manhattan's Upper East Side.  Our mission is to make

         21  our neighborhood more sustainable by reducing its

         22  environmental footprint.  Just as an added note that

         23  obviously it's very interconnected with all areas of

         24  the City as many people from our area go to other

         25  areas of the City and many from other areas of the
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          2  City come to our areas.  So what's sustainable for

          3  us should be sustainable for everyone else as well.

          4                 We are sure that many people today

          5  will talk to you about the need to increase the

          6  supply of various forms of transportation, and

          7  indeed, we have a few modes of transportation that

          8  we would like to see more of, like good reliable

          9  mass transit and biking.  But today we would like to

         10  stress the point that transportation is more a means

         11  to an end than an end itself. Transportation

         12  provides access to desirable destinations such as

         13  workplaces, retail shopping, entertainment, health

         14  care providers, religious institutions, et cetera,

         15  et cetera.  We encourage the Members of this

         16  Committee to consider for a moment that the goal is

         17  not necessarily to move people around as fast or as

         18  far as possible but tot bring all those various

         19  destinations into closer proximity to each other and

         20  the people that desire them.

         21                 Upper Green Side recently conducted a

         22  survey of residents in Community Board eight in

         23  Manhattan and we found that the quickest and most

         24  satisfied commuters were the 18 percent of commuters

         25  in our area who walk to work.  Paradoxically the
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          2  slowest form of transportation had the fastest

          3  commute times.  With walkers having an average of 24

          4  minute commute versus 36 minutes for mass transit

          5  commuters.  The reason of course is that these

          6  residents have chosen and can afford to live much

          7  closer to their places of employment than other

          8  residents and this is translated into a higher

          9  quality of life.  Over 60 percent of walkers found

         10  their commutes to be extremely pleasant or

         11  moderately pleasant, versus only 20 percent of

         12  subway commuters in our area.  We also discovered

         13  through our survey that 78 percent of local

         14  residents walk to their local grocery stores.  This

         15  is because of proximity, not elegant transportation

         16  infrastructure planning.

         17                 Our recommendation to this Committee

         18  and to the Mayor's Sustainability Office on how to

         19  improve travel times and add capacity to our

         20  transportation system is to think more about access

         21  to desired destinations through closer proximity

         22  rather than large and expensive infrastructure

         23  projects.  What might cost billions of dollars and

         24  decades to achieve through building transportation

         25  infrastructure might be more quickly and less

                                                            97

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  expensively achieved through better Urban Planning.

          3  Access to proximity means creating more incentives

          4  to create more jobs where people live and more

          5  housing close to large employment centers.  It means

          6  creating more mixed use, mixed income, and walkable

          7  development in all of New York's diverse

          8  communities.  It also means rethinking how our

          9  streets are designed to emphasize the use of that

         10  public space for the benefit of a whole neighborhood

         11  as opposed to the traffic flowing through it.

         12                 We urge the Council and the Mayor's

         13  Sustainability Office to consider how we can best

         14  increase access to all the destinations that people

         15  require and desire within walking distance of their

         16  homes.

         17                 Thank you very much for inviting us

         18  again.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         20                 MR. CHEZAR:  Hi, my name is Bart

         21  Chezar, thank you for inviting me to speak here.  I

         22  am a self- employed Transportation Consultant.  When

         23  we return in five to ten years to discuss the issues

         24  involved in today's hearing, our world will be

         25  fundamentally different.  Within this period the
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          2  consequences of global warming, be it social,

          3  economic, environmental or political will be our

          4  preeminent concern.  In parallel with this the issue

          5  will be an energy crisis brought on by the dwindling

          6  supplies of liquid and gaseous fuels and the

          7  associated steep rise in their cost.

          8                 With this as background, let me begin

          9  with ten suggestions as what can be done concerning

         10  transportation in New York City to meet the goals of

         11  PlaNYC 2030.

         12                 1)  Mass Transit Rail.  Regarding the

         13  various large capital projects the MTA is currently

         14  involved in or planning, I feel other individuals

         15  can more knowledgeably discuss this.  We need to

         16  move forward aggressively with the best of these

         17  projects. We cannot afford to wait decades for them

         18  because they are integral to meeting all our other

         19  sustainability requirements.

         20                 One area of mass transit I would like

         21  to comment on and where I think we need to see more

         22  improvement is a priority we give to ensuring that

         23  the system is clean, safe and reliable.  I believe

         24  in recent years we have not improved sufficiently in

         25  these areas and in some areas we have gone
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          2  backwards.  A large percentage of the uses (sic) of

          3  subways and the commuter system do not have any

          4  alternative to using it.  If we want to

          5  significantly increase ridership we need to attract

          6  those travelers who have other alternatives to

          7  moving around the City, those with cars.  If we went

          8  to get these people into the transit systems, we

          9  have to make sure it's clean, safe and reliable.

         10  Regardless of the statistics we see concerning these

         11  measures, perception is reality in terms of

         12  attracting new ridership.  Once specific area that I

         13  believe we need to move quickly on concerns

         14  information to the riding public on when the next

         15  train and bus will arrive.

         16                 Mass Transit, Buses.  New York City

         17  leads the nation in having the cleanest, most fuel-

         18  efficient transit buses. Unfortunately we also lead

         19  the nation in having the slowest moving buses in

         20  City traffic.  I seldom take a bus since most of the

         21  time I could walk faster.  We must speed up the roll

         22  out of Bus Rapid Transit and expand their plans well

         23  beyond what is presently being considered.

         24  Implementing Bus Rapid Transit and expanding express

         25  bus service is the fastest way to add ridership to
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          2  the transit system.  We can quickly move forward

          3  with this without very expensive infrastructure and

          4  capital costs which is required for new heavy rail

          5  transit projects.  We have to demonstrate to the

          6  public that they can move through the City more

          7  rapidly or at last more conveniently in a bus than

          8  in a car.

          9                 Concerning bus technology.  There are

         10  still significant improvements that can be made to

         11  the hybrid electric buses being used today.  These

         12  improvements would make the buses cleaner, more fuel

         13  efficient, and quieter.  There is also the promise

         14  of plug- in technology which enables the buses to

         15  operate all electrically near the bus depots and,

         16  therefore, be good neighbors in the communities

         17  where they operate.

         18                 Delivery Vehicles.  The efficient

         19  delivery of goods and services within the City is

         20  critical to the productivity and economic vitality

         21  of the City.  This is an area that needs careful

         22  evaluations in terms of the vehicles used, the

         23  materials delivered, the timing of the deliveries

         24  and the traffic impact.

         25                 For Suggestions.  First to the extent
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          2  possible, deliveries should be made off- peak to

          3  avoid traffic congestion. This also lessens the need

          4  for double- parking which impedes the flow of

          5  traffic.  Second, provide Green curb side parking

          6  areas. These would be parking zones near critical

          7  delivery points where certified clean, fuel

          8  efficient delivery trucks would be provided priority

          9  parking.  Third, regarding technology, all of the

         10  major delivery companies are developing and

         11  demonstrating hybrid electric technology.  This must

         12  be encouraged and at some point required. The

         13  opportunities here are tremendous.  Are you aware

         14  that there are currently ten all electric US postal

         15  vehicles operating on the West Side of Manhattan?

         16  In many applications in the City where daily mileage

         17  driven is low, such vehicles would work well.  For

         18  other applications plug- in hybrid electric

         19  technologies again which enable the vehicle to

         20  operate all electrically at certain points should be

         21  promoted.  Finally, for making deliveries to major

         22  markets, for example Hunts Point, or large stores

         23  such as Whole Foods, technology known as Truck Stop

         24  of Electrification should be required.  This

         25  technology enables trucks to turn off their engines

                                                            102

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  yet still receive the power necessary to operate air

          3  conditioning and refrigeration while parked

          4  overnight or while making deliveries.  There is

          5  currently a small installation at Hunts Point

          6  market.  This needs to be expanded to other markets

          7  and delivery points.

          8                 4)  Congestion Pricing.  Any

          9  discussion concerning improving transportation in

         10  New York City would be remiss without serious

         11  consideration of congestion pricing.  I cannot get

         12  into all the issues involving congestion pricing in

         13  this testimony but we need to level the playing

         14  field such that the options of mass transit is

         15  fairly weighed by people choosing to take their

         16  vehicles into the most congested portions of the

         17  City.  Congestion pricing provides the best

         18  opportunity for reducing car use.  Implementing

         19  congestion pricing must go hand in hand with the

         20  other measures discussed such that mass transit is

         21  considered viable by current vehicle users.  One

         22  option for those who must use their cars is to lower

         23  the congestion fee for those operating the cleanest

         24  vehicles. The Taxi and Limousine Commission is

         25  giving the biggest incentives for new taxis which
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          2  have air pollution scores of 9.5 and omit less than

          3  five tons per year of CO2 as determined by the

          4  USEPA. Something similar to this might be applied to

          5  a congestion pricing plan.

          6                 5)  Delivery Services.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Chezar, I do

          8  appreciate your ten recommendations here and I know

          9  you still have a fair amount to go through and

         10  you've already consumed a significant amount of

         11  time.  What I would like to suggest is I'd like to

         12  hear from the other panelists and then give them the

         13  flexibility of staying or not and then we'll proceed

         14  with the rest of your testimony.

         15                 MR. CHEZAR:  That's fine.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please.

         17                 MS. BLAIR- SKIPPER:  Good afternoon,

         18  my name is Doreen Blair- Skipper, and I reside in

         19  the Borough of Queens.  I, myself am a mother with a

         20  child that has a rare lung disease.  I have concerns

         21  about the transportation and have had concerns since

         22  December of 2003.

         23                 I have on numerous occasion witnessed

         24  the inexplicable acts of motorists and pedestrians

         25  while crossing the streets when an emergency vehicle
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          2  is in route.  They do not really adhere to the

          3  traffic laws, I surmise there could be several

          4  reasons for this.

          5                 I have on several occasions read of

          6  accounts via the media, newspapers and about

          7  intersection collisions concerning ambulances, fire

          8  trucks and police cars, sometimes resulting in

          9  fatalities.  My heart goes out to them trying to do

         10  a job with increased anxiety in trying to make it to

         11  a scene or medical facility where their help is

         12  greatly needed.  I came up with an idea to help

         13  combat the above.  This idea has inspired me to

         14  advocate for New York City's Emergency Responders.

         15  I must admit I had no idea that it would have taken

         16  me this far.  This could help save lives for the

         17  bravest that risk their lives because of their jobs.

         18                 Well how about the person that

         19  doesn't have that job, a motorist that is on their

         20  way to work to support their family?  Or better yet,

         21  the person who is waiting for emergency assistance

         22  from an ambulance or to receive help from a medical

         23  facility?  The human body when in trauma still

         24  requires the same amount of time to receive help in

         25  order to be saved.  There is no wasting of time.
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          2                 Emergency Responders have to try to

          3  beat that time and I am sure it is harder to do so

          4  because there is nothing in place to help them with

          5  added traffic and motorists that do not adhere to

          6  the traffic rules of stopping and pulling over to

          7  let them through, or some that have no idea which

          8  direction the emergency vehicle is coming from.  The

          9  result is an intersection collision which almost

         10  always results in a fatality.

         11                 Last year in May 2006, the 73rd

         12  Precinct had five officers that were responding to

         13  an emergency and they were injured in an

         14  intersection collision, and mother and her two sons

         15  were involved, which one later died.  The family was

         16  quoted as saying, "they were going to fast," well

         17  isn't that what emergency vehicles do?

         18                 In Queens at 2:30 a.m. an ambulance

         19  collided with a motorist.  How could this have

         20  happened?  There are not as many vehicles on the

         21  street that time in the morning.  I woke up one

         22  morning a few months ago and turned on the news to

         23  only see an AMR Ambulance overturned on some thru-

         24  fair in Queens.  Please be aware that I have these

         25  mental images I always see at a traffic light.
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          2  There is even a report where a transplant patient

          3  received a call to get to the hospital in order to

          4  receive a donors organ.  She did not receive her

          5  organ because the ambulance was late.

          6                 If New York City Plan 2030 is to

          7  expect an increase of the population by one million

          8  I would think that with the way things are now we

          9  would need to plan for better service for the

         10  emergency responders and motorists.  I believe so

         11  strongly in this that I not only have come up with

         12  an idea but also invested in it to try to further

         13  help resolve this issue concerning how emergency

         14  responders in the City of New York.  (sic)  Not many

         15  people can say that, they usually have complaints

         16  with no resolution, or inaction. I hope that you can

         17  see the advantages of having an Auxiliary Traffic

         18  Light product like Due Stop incorporate and help to

         19  save lives.  This is my plan to help support the

         20  citizens of New York. As you can see the design of

         21  Due Stop, considered an Auxiliary Traffic Light

         22  would not require any additional reconstruction of

         23  our already existing traffic light systems,

         24  therefore, it would not be as costly to the City of

         25  New York.
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          2                 Thank you for your time.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Mr.

          4  Schaller.

          5                 MR. SCHALLER:  Is this on, okay.

          6  Good afternoon, I'm Bruce Schaller, Principal of

          7  Schaller Consulting, and I'll be brief.  You have my

          8  written statement and many of the points that I wish

          9  to make have already been made and don't bear

         10  repeating in detail this afternoon.  But I would

         11  just like to make a couple of notes from the

         12  testimony, or highlight a couple of things.

         13                 First, as Gene Russianoff pointed

         14  out, the Mayor's objectives do not explicitly

         15  address traffic congestion and yet to speed up

         16  travel times and to reduce commute times inherently

         17  requires reducing traffic.  And as a response to the

         18  Mayor's goals, on his own website, indicate there is

         19  tremendous public interest and support for reducing

         20  traffic and so I think that should be one main focus

         21  of the 2030 Plan and there are obvious environmental

         22  and global warming type benefits that flow from that

         23  as well.  So I have outlined what I see as four key

         24  elements or steps along those lines.

         25                 One, in terms of congestion pricing
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          2  much discussed, and I think we really need to

          3  highlight the role of economic incentives in terms

          4  of driving into Manhattan and the Manhattan CBD.

          5  For most people, driving into Manhattan would be a

          6  very expensive proposition, bridge tolls, in terms

          7  of parking, gas, wear and tear on the car, et

          8  cetera, and yet our studies being released today and

          9  others show that for those who do drive, the

         10  economic incentives encourage driving and that's

         11  what we need to turn around the other way.  So that

         12  the financial incentives discourage driving and

         13  encourage the efficient use of the streets by people

         14  with the most economic reason to use them.

         15                 Secondly, in terms of expanding

         16  public transportation, I think there needs to be a

         17  very strong emphasis on improving transportation

         18  options and speeds, particularly in the outlying

         19  areas of the City which have the longest commute

         20  times, have the greatest levels of auto commutation

         21  and which have the greatest gap in travel times

         22  between the car and public transportation.  Some of

         23  that in terms of technology, in terms of service, in

         24  terms of using Long Island Railroad and Metro North

         25  better, more effectively for intra- City trips and a
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          2  lot of that is also operational on the part of the

          3  MTA.  In my conversations, in focus groups and

          4  research with people who live in outlying areas of

          5  the City, the complaint isn't so much about the

          6  normal travel time from Eastern Queens and in

          7  Manhattan for example, it's variability. It's not

          8  that it takes and hour and ten minutes, it's that

          9  some days it takes an hour and ten minutes and some

         10  days it takes two hours.  How long do you have to

         11  stand there and wait for the bus? And that's what

         12  needs to be addressed.  Some of that BRT, and

         13  express buses and solutions like that can address,

         14  but some of that is just a pure operational

         15  question.  Is where is the bus supervisor when he or

         16  she is needed?

         17                 Third, adding rail capacity as Gene

         18  Russianoff mentioned.  I think technology can play a

         19  big role in increasing the capacity on existing

         20  lines through communication base train control

         21  systems and related technologies.

         22                 And finally, to give priority to the

         23  most efficient use of the public streets.  I think

         24  there is a growing public consensus toward favoring

         25  high efficiency modes, the bus, the bicycle, the
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          2  foot, over the auto.

          3                 And finally there were some questions

          4  earlier in terms of interim objectives and dates, I

          5  think it is very important that this Plan for 2030

          6  should also be a Plan for 2007, 2008, and 2009, and

          7  there are steps many of which we have talked about

          8  in the context of Intro 199, for example, that can

          9  be taken in that much shorter time- frame which will

         10  show people that what we're talking about is

         11  actually can bring benefits in the short- term and

         12  will act as building blocks for some of these longer

         13  larger objectives.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Yes, we

         16  have spoken about the need for milestones or points

         17  where we can measure the progress before the entire

         18  23 years lapse.  So thank you very much for your

         19  testimony.

         20                 Mr. Chezar, I give the panelists the

         21  option of staying, or --

         22                 MR. CHEZAR:  I'll just be a few words

         23  on some of the things. (sic)

         24                 The Delivery Services.  We have

         25  vehicles that deliver from restaurants,
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          2  supermarkets, all local retail establishments.  We

          3  have to look at the vehicles that do this service

          4  and look at alternatives, one might be scooters.

          5                 Car Service Vehicles.  We have over

          6  50,000 taxis, Black Cars and car services cars in

          7  the vehicles.  TLC's taken some steps to clean- up

          8  these vehicles.  These vehicles are important to the

          9  public, that's often why people don't have cars is

         10  they can utilize these services.  We need to do more

         11  to clean up these vehicles.

         12                 School Buses:  We have 5,000 large

         13  school buses in this City.  I'm working on a plan

         14  with a number of organizations to look at a

         15  retirement program to get those older school buses

         16  off the streets.  They contribute significantly to

         17  ozone causing chemicals and to particulars.

         18                 Green Zones.  Parks, campuses,

         19  Governors Island, places like that, use the cleanest

         20  vehicles in those areas. Particularly at airports.

         21  Many places in this country, they're electrifying

         22  the equipment used at the airports.  That could be

         23  done here.  Also when the airports (sic) are at the

         24  gate, they could plug into the terminal so they

         25  could turn off their engines or not use the tarmac
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          2  generators.  Big polluters.

          3                 Passenger Ships.  Small item but on

          4  the West Coast they're looking at shore power so

          5  that when the ships are in dock they could plug into

          6  these terminals and turn off the power plants that

          7  are on those ships.

          8                 And finally station cars, and though

          9  it's not specifically a City issue, the commuter

         10  rail system is vital to the economic development of

         11  this City.  Tens of thousands of people use a

         12  commuter system to get in.  The commuter stations

         13  are packed with vehicles, they can't put any more

         14  there.  I was involved in a project where we had

         15  electric station cars, small cars that served these

         16  train stations.  It was very popular with Ford which

         17  produced the vehicles, for economic reasons dropped

         18  out of it.  There are other companies coming into

         19  this area.  This is something the City should

         20  encourage because it gets more people using commuter

         21  rail to get into the City.

         22                 I guess my only point is if the City

         23  is going to expand with a million more people, more

         24  housing and all that goes with this, plus a lot of

         25  the transportation technologies we're looking at,
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          2  most of which require electric power, we're going to

          3  have to look carefully at where this electricity

          4  comes from.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very much

          7  Mr. Chezar for your very complete testimony.  Thank

          8  you.

          9                 We have one more witness, Mr. X.

         10                 MR. X:  Just two things John.  One,

         11  good bye and good riddance to Iris Weinshall, and

         12  two, regarding Bus Rapid Study, all you need is HOV

         13  lanes on all the major streets, and finally the

         14  drivers who drive and/or park their cars in the

         15  lanes, that will teach them a lesson about driving

         16  and parking their cars in the HOV lanes.  They

         17  should be placed on the streets and the bridges as

         18  well, this way the buses can operate on time.  I'll

         19  pick on express buses - the fare should be two

         20  dollars, not five. Just like the local buses, they

         21  don't operate that much different than express

         22  buses.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Right.

         24                 MR. X:  I'll be there on March 9th.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thanks X.
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          2                 MR. X:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  There being no

          4  other witnesses for this hearing, this hearing of

          5  the City Council's Committee on Transportation is

          6  adjourned.

          7                 (Hearing concluded at 3:34 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, SUSAN MILNER, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 1st day of March 2007.
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          9            I, SUSAN MILNER, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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